
The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove dousing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation

District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and

Lemon Grove Successor Agency

Call to order

Pledge of Allegiance

Changes to the Agenda

Public Comment

Note: In accordance with State Law, the general public may bring forward an item not

scheduled on the agenda; however, the City Council may not take any action at this meeting. 
If appropriate, the item will be referred to staff or placed on a future agenda.) 

1. Consent Calendar

Note: The items listed on the Consent Calendar will be enacted in one motion unless

removed from the Consent Calendar by Council, staff, or the public. Items that are pulled

will be considered at the end of the agenda.) 

A. Approval of Meeting Minutes

December 16, 2014 - Regular Meeting
Members present: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, and Vasquez

Reference: Susan Garcia, City Clerk
Recommendation: Approve Minutes

B. City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands

Reference: Cathy Till, Finance Director

Recommendation: Ratify Demands

C. Waive Full Text Reading of All ordinances on the Agenda

Reference: James P. Lough, City Attorney
Recommendation: ( Naive the full text reading of all ordinances included in this

agenda; ordinances shall be introduced and adopted by title
only

D. Appointment of City Councilmembers to Committees, Commissions and Boards

Reference: Mayor Sessom

Recommendation: Ratify Assignments

2. Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP14- 0002 and Tentative

Map TM0060 ( 3515 Olive Street) 

The City Council will consider resolutions approving Planned Development Permit

PDP14- 0002 and Tentative Map TM4660 for the development of an 84 -unit

condominium project at 3515 olive Street. 

Reference: Carol Dick, Development Services Director

Recommendation: Conduct Public Hearing and Adopt Resolutions



3. San Diego community Land Trust Business Plan

The City Council will receive and consider a business plan submitted by the San
Diego Community Land Trust regarding the development of a nine -unit townhome

project at 8084 Lemon Grove Way. 

Reference: Graham Mitchell, city Manager
Recommendation: Receive Report and Provide Feedback

4. Sidewalk Installation Incentive Programs

The City Council will receive a report from staff regarding possible programs to

incentivize the installation of sidewalks in the City. 

Reference: Graham Mitchell, City Manager
Recommendation: Provide Feedback

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the City. 
GC 53232. 3 ( d)) 
53232. 3. (d) states that members of a legislative body shall provide brief reports on meetings attended

at the expense of the local agency at the next regular meeting of the legislative body.) 

Department Director Reports ( Non -Action Items) 

A urnme n t
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act ( ADA), the City of Lemon Grove will provide
special accommodations access, attend and/ or participatl. 

Hall,

in meetings of the City Council. If you require such assistance, please contact the City Clerk a, 

619) 825- 3800 or email sgarcia@lemong rove. ca-gov prior to the meeting. A full agenda packet is

available for public review at City



MINUTES OF A MEETING of

THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL, LEMON GROVE HOUSING AUTHORITY, LEMON

GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT BOARD, LEMON GROVE ROADWAY LIGHTING DISTRICT

BOARD, AND LEMON GROVE SUCCESSOR AGENCY

December 16, 2014

Call to order

Members present: Mary Sessom, George Gastil, Jerry Jones, Jennifer Mendoza, and Racquel Vasquez. 

Members absent: None. 

City Staff present: Graham Mitchell, City Manager; Lt. Brock, Sheriff's Department; Carol Dick, 

Development Services Director; Susan Garcia, City Clerk; James P. Lough, City Attorney; Mike

James, Public Works Director; Rick Sitta, Fire Chief; Tim Smith, Deputy Fire Chief; and Cathleen Till, 

Finance Director. 

Mayor Sessom provided Tim Smith with a proclamation recognizing his service to the City of Lemon
Grove. 

Congresswoman Susan Davis provided the oath of office to Councilmember Jennifer Mendoza

and Susan Garcia, City Clerk, provided the oath of office to Councilmember Jerry Jones. 

Public Comment

Helen Ofield provided a report regarding Lemon Grove World War 11 veterans.. 

Brenda Hammond commented on reporting crime, 

I. Consent Calendar

A. Approval of City Council Minutes
December 2, 2014 Regular Meeting

B. Ratification of Payment Demands

C. Waive Full Text Reading of All ordinances and Resolutions on the Agenda
D. Local Appointments List Update

E. Mayor Pro Tem Rotation

Action: Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Jones, seconded by Councilmember Gastil, to approve

the Consent Calendar passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Resolution No. 2014- 3295: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California Confirming the Rotation of Councilmember Racquel Vasquez to Serve as the Mayor
Pro Tem for the Period of December 16, 2014 through December 15, 2015 and Establishing the
Mayor Pro Tem Rotation Schedule for the Subsequent Two Years



2. Lemon Grove Farmers Market Agreement

Mike James explained that on November 4, 2014, the City Council received a report

recommending a plan to implement a Lemon Grove Certified Farmers Market ( Farmers Market) 

at the Main Street Promenade Park every Saturday from 9: 00 a. m. to 2: 00 p. m. During that

meeting, the City Council received public comment from Ms. Teresa Johnson, owner of the

Grove Pastry Shop, that requested the City Council consider another day and time of the week
to implement a Farmers Market because Saturdays may negatively impact the Lemon Grove

business community. 

Mr. James noted that if the City Council moves forward with a Farmers Market, staff has

prepared a resolution approving an agreement between the City and Ms. Kimberly Paris to

manage the Farmers Market. 

Some key components of that agreement include: 

The use of the promenade to host the market, 

All vendors will be authorized to park in the vacant City owned lot located on the north
side of the 7700 block of North Avenue, 

No public parking spaces will be reserved during the Markets hours of operation. 

However, the Lessee will create signs directing patrons to available public parking stalls
at the Lester Parking Lot, along Main Street south of Pacific Avenue, City Hall parking
lot, and Civic Center parking lot, 

Requires the City to open and not charge for the use of the restrooms at the Promenade
during the Farmers Market hours of operation, 

Requires the vendors to be screened and fully licensed, and

Identifies the responsibilities of the market manager. 

Representing the Lemon Grove business community were Teresa Johnson, Gretchen Scott, 

Steve Browne, Jim Butcher, Mary England, and Eric Lund who provided the results of their

survey. 

Public S kers) 

Ginger Hitzke

Helen Gfield

Eric Lund

John DuFon

Kinsee Morland

Michael Schultz

Linda Schultz

John Enright

Scott Robinson

I



Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Vasquez to adopt
the resolution to implement a Lemon Grove Farmers Market at the Main Street

Promenade Park every Saturday from 9: 00 a. m. to 2: 00 p.m. passed, by the following
vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza Vasquez

Resolution No. 2014 — 3296: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California: Approving an Agreement with Kimberly Paris to Manage the Lemon Grove Certified
Farmers Market

3. Public Safety Focus Group Report

Graham Mitchell reported that one of the goals established by the City Council during its 2014

goal setting workshop was to establish a Public Safety Focus Group with the objectives of

providing; 1) strategies to address public safety and the perception of safety in the City' s
commercial corridors, and 2) strategies to address the drain on public resources responding to
group homes/ sober living facilities. 

The focus group conducted two meetings. The first meeting focused on the first objective. The

focus group, through group discussions, first identified public safety challenges and then

solutions to address those specific challenges. During its second meeting, the focus group

discussed the drain of public resources resulting from group homes and sober living facilities. 

Charlene McAdory, Robin McNulty, Ivy Westmoreland, and Amy Hall provided the background
data reviewed by the focus group and presented their findings. 

The focus group identified the three most significant public safety challenges in the City' s
commercial corridors as physical environment, intimidating groups, and lack of community

involvement. 

Some of the solutions that were presented included proactive code enforcement, encourage

owners to enforce " no trespassing" laws, or market ways to report crimes, a downtown cleanup
volunteer crew, identify and eliminate design features that attract nuisances, or initiate a ballot

measure to change the business licenses ordinance. 

Public Speaker( s) 

Mike Richards commented a from senior citizen' s perspective related to public safety. 

After the discussion, the City Council requested that the focus group continue to work with staff
to develop a proposal that prioritizes their recommended solutions. 

4. Lemon Grove Public Artwork

Graham Mitchell stated that the San Diego Museum of Art ( SDMA) operates a program referred

to as " open Spaces" to promote public art in communities within San Diego County. 
The program is funded through a grant from the James Irvine Foundation. Lemon Grove is one

of four San Diego County communities selected as a recipient of this program. 
The San Diego Museum of Art hosted seven community workshops between July

14th

and

November
15th

this year. These workshops sought to involve a diverse group of community

members and ranged between 10 and 27 participants at each workshop. 

I



Through the workshops, the community initially identified 7 potential art projects, 

These projects included: 

Buena Vista Avenue Bridge Mural

Lemon Grove Skate Park Art Project

Utility Boxes Art Project

Recycled Art Sculpture

Cultural Motifs

Lemonade Stand

IntrospectiveTree

After further community input through a workshop and an online survey, the San Diego Museum
of Art narrowed the potential projects to three— a mural under SR94 bridge at Buena Vista
Avenue, a utility box art project, and art at the Lemon Grove skate spot. on November 15th, the

community members attending the workshop realized that the skate spot schedule was not ideal
for this project, but perhaps as a part of the improvements currently being considered. The
members also came to consensus that the project with the most significant impact for the

community was the mural under the SR94 bridge at Buena Vista Avenue. 

Since the November
15th

workshop, the San Diego Museum of Art staff and City staff met with
Caltrans representatives regarding permit requirements. Caltrans staff was enthusiastic and

supportive and asked to see proposals as soon as possible in order to provide additional advice. 

Requirements identified by Caltrans included a City Council resolution authorizing the submittal
of an encroachment permit and authorizing potential modifications to the Freeway Maintenance
Agreement between the City and Caltrans and a scope of work of the proposed art project. 

Miguel Angel Godoy, the Artist, provided a presentation of the community input and his vision
for the proposed mural. 

Public Speaker( s) 

There were no requests from the public to speak, 

Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Gastil, to adopt
the resolution passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Resolution No. 2014- 3297: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California; Authorizing the Submission of an Encroachment Permit Application to the State of
California, Department of Transportation for the Installation and Maintenance of a Mural on The

State Route 94 overpass at Buena Vista Avenue and Authorizing Modifications to the Freeway
Maintenance Agreement

Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, to

adopt the resolution as amended passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

4



Resolution No. 2014- 3298: Resolution of the` City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California: Approving a Memorandum of Understanding between the San Diego Museum of Art
and the City of Lemon Grove for the Installation and Maintenance of a Mural on the State Route
94 overpass at Buena Vista Avenue

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the
City. ( GC 53232.3 ( d)) 

Councilmember Jones attended SANDAL, Metro Wastewater, and MTS meetings. 

Councilmember Mendoza attended the Annual Community Bonfire, a tour of Rosemary
Putnam' s historic home, a League of California Cities luncheon, and the Lemon Grove Clergy
breakfast. 

Councilmember Gastil attended the Annual Community Bonfire and a tour of Rosemary
Putnam' s historic home. 

Mayor Pro Tem Vasquez attended the Annual Community Bonfire, Assemblywoman Weber' s

legislative update and Senator Anderson' s legislative update, and the Lemon Grove Craft Fair. 

Mayor Sessom attended SANDAL and Airport Authority meetings, the Annual Community
Bonfire, and presented a proclamation to outgoing Art Madrid for his years for service to the City
of La Mesa

City Manager and Department Director Reports

Carol Dick reported that KTU & A received an award of merit from the American Society of
Landscape Architects for the Main Street Promenade Project. 

Mike James provided a report regarding the Annual Community Bonfire. 

Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the City Council, Housing Authority, Sanitation

District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and the Lemon Grove Successor

Agency the meeting was adjourned at 8: 89 p. m. 

Susan Garcia, City Clerk

Z



City of Lemon Grove Demands Summary
Approved as Submitted: 

Cathleen Till, Finance Director ACIS/ AP Checks 12/ 09/ 14- 12/ 17/ 14 295, 816-53

1::, or Council Meeting. 01/ 06/ 15

Payroll - 12/ 9/ 14 141P470. 94

To -Lai Demands 4371287. 47

CirffICK

CHLCR NO I t4V O I C E. ' 41 VENDOR Ii CHECK UATE Description I N W.) tCE A TOO Ll lN I AM, r]( Jili

A101.... 1 41549210380/ 1- 0 SDG& E 12/ 09/ 2014 Electric Usage - St Light 10/ 31/ 14- 11/ 30/ 14 2, 718, 45 2, 718A5

ACI 1 35618, 1360625/ 1, SDG& E 12/ 09/ 2014 Electric Usage -St Light 10/ 31/ 14- 11/ 30/ 14 1" 11919 510, 1, 199 501

ACI i Dec9 14 Eirniployirnent Diaveloprnermt 1 12/ 11/ 2014 State Taxes 8  Oil ) i 8, 160 68

ICH 11iyi 14 Wells Fargo IBank 12/ 11/ 2014 Bank Service Charge - Nov' 14 830 86 X310 ' 86

ACI,,,,I iDeic 14 Pitney Bowes h c, 12/ 16/ 2014 Postage Usage 12/ 11, 12/ 12, 12/ 15 810( 31 0110 800 () 0

ACH Deic9 14 US Treasury 12/ 11/ 2014 1:` ederal Taxes 28, 994 27 28,, 994 2' 2

ACH Niov' 14 WEX Wright Express Fleet Sere i 12/ 17/ 2014 Fuel -Fire Dept, - NaV14 2,, 118 21. 19 2,, 118, 219

3110 11001316 AAA Irnalging 12/ 10/ 2014 Business Cards 91, 8101 91 801

3111 Adieverno Adeylernio, To,yiln 12/ 10/ 2014 Refund/ Adeyemo, Toyin/ Deposi- t/ LBH 11/ 29/ 14 200 GO 2010 00

311. 2 L10728950L Airneirican Messaglrig 12/ 10/ 2014 Pager Replacement Program 12/ 01/ 14- 12/ 31/ 14 45, 24 45 24

3113 Nov 14 A l`& T 12/ 10/ 2014 AT& T High, Speed Internet Max Plus 10/ 23/ 14- 11/ 22/ 14 65, 010 3116, 81

Dec 14 Phone Service - Dec'. 1. 4 251. 81

31. 1. 4 4344363 131eariciory"u 12/ 10/ 2014 Portable Radios Monthly Contract - 11/ 22/ 14- 12/ 21/ 14 15, 0001 15101 00

3 115 ec' 14 California Dental Network Inc. 12/ 10/ 2014 Dental insurance - Dec' 14 461, 10 461 1. 10, 

31116 4, 01449947' 1 Cancun Business Solutions Inic. 12/ 10/ 21014 CiolAier Mainteirianicle 8/ 2)/ 14- 11/ 26/ 14 City I1LlaIlll 551- 153 5 73 162

4014499472 Cio.:)ier Maintenarice 8/ 27/ 14 11/ 26/ 14 Fire Stat'lloit"I 22, 109

31.1.7 Diecl 14 Citizens Business Bank 12/ 10/ 21014 Fire Statlior-i IExiaiansicunl - Lease i3ental Payment 11, 310 151 11, 3101 61

31181 HC0010010107 City of IEl Cajon 12/ 110/ 21014 H1CFA FY15 Pass Ti111r101Ujg1Vii Bilhinig 2, 710851 2, 7108, 51

311' 9 113432616 Cc rle liogic lnflormatilion Sollutio,ris litric, 12/ 10/ 20114 ReallQuest Graphics Package - Nov" 14 31010 10101 316, 510

91343578 lmagie ReqUiests III ov' 14 116- 510, 

31210 Coroinaidio Coronadlo, ILaluura 12/ 10/ 20, 14 lliefund/', Coiii,-,onado,, Laiulv,,a/ Deplosit Rec 1Ctr 12/ 7/ 14, 210101 010 210101 010

31121 Decl 14 Cox 12/ 101/' 2014 Monthly PlViorie Service: Deic" 14 City Hall 5''519. 78 9, 017 73

Dictl 14 Peg Circuit Svic:, 9/ 30/ 14- 110/ 29/ 14, 2, 8104, 1610

1003114 Peg 'Circuit Svc: 1101/ 310/ 14. 11/ 2.9'/ 14 2, 8 04 601

DI" ov29 14 Pelf Circuit Svc: 11/ 3,01/ 14- 12/ 29/ 14 2,, 848 75

3122 11871 CiustorrA,lutio Wrap inic 12/ 10/ 2014 Eing lrte 210, - Graphics 890 601 89, 0610

31123 1114050' 01 DAIR Conitraictors 12/ 1101/ 21014 Animal Disposal- Nov"114 174 1010 1, 74 100

3124 11211423015 Dornestic Llnein Calllfoiirriia inic 12/ 10/ 2014 Shop Towels & Safety 1Mats 11/ 21/ 114 72 25 144 50

120,5114 23,015, Shop Towels 1& Safety IMalts 12/ 51/ 14 72 25

31251 37953 Dion I lienidersain AultoService 12/ 10/ 20114 Oil 1& Filter Change 201104 Fiord Expedition 41 73 111 aµ.'" 16

3126 12/ 1- 4/ 14 cicirpinr, atiloillni 12/ 10/ 21014
7511% 

Building F,E. ies 12/ 011/ 14- 12/ 104/ 14 1, 6351, 819 1 16 1! Ir3 8,19

3127 610731071 Glilobalstar USA,, Inc 12/ 1110/ 2,014 Satellite Service 110/ 116/ 14- 11/ 15/ 14 84 79 OL14 719

3128 Ai:,10041970 Girossiry-liont Ur I i10 In I Is District 12/ 110/ 2014 20, 010 I:Tyiers for, Fire ID1leplt, - " Tranq,)ort Refusal" gis no 11!!) 16 11: 1X1:', 1) 



3129 07- 1858 Lemon Grove Scho6 District 12/ 1- 0/ 2014 Fuel Services fair Oct" 14 Hire Stirl 8014 801.4

313, 10 Nov 1.4 LouinsIberry Ferguson Akoina & lPealk LLIP 12/ 10/ 20'..l.4 G e in e ir a 1X1. 1. 1. 63 00002 4, 092. 20 14, 324. 30

DOF 01163- 0001. 7 3, 713, 00

MooireVs City 011. 63- 00018 458, 20

Affordable IhHousing 01,163- 0001.9 1, 357, 32

IRDA- General 01.1.63- 00004 71.1- 00

City v Seimnpra Energy, et all 011, 3, 992, 58

3131 magpirorn IMag1nrorng, Jacqueline 1. 2/ 10/ 201.4 Refuv-od/ Magpiroirig, Jacquelliine/ l.)el) osit Comirn Ctr'..1, 1/ 30/ 14 200, 00 200, 00

3132 1110 Miller 51patW Services, LLC 1. 2/ 10/ 20. 1. 4 GIS Consuking Services 6/ 12/ 14--.11/ 5/ 1. 4 2, 41.5, 00 2, 41500

31.33 2014- 9774 II JW Technical Services 1. 2/ 1- 0/ 2014 E10 Cali brations/ Relssue Replaces C102463 8/ 6/ 14- Ilost fir -ii imad 179. 39 1. 79,39

3134 NovI,9 14 l" unicipal Auditlirlig Services, L. 11 C 1. 2/ 1. 0/ 20.14 Busliness License Audit Svc' 11/ 1- 9/ 14 241. 60 24. 1- 60

3135 107632984 National Pen Co , I I C 1. 2/ 1. 0/ 20.1. 4 CLG IPeirns 399. 65 399, 65

31.36 1, 84408 Ninyo & IMocire 12/ 10/ 2014 Citir-oinica II/ lin-sIp Svc thirough Selpt" 14--.7701. lNorth 49050 1. 9, 9:1. 6. 50

184409 IKD Grove/ Insp Svc through Oct °1.4- 71.28 Sain lmigue 2, 269a00

184410 Valencia/ linsp Svc thirough C1c1`' 14 Sari Altos 8, 15TOO

31.37 1. 41.00307 INolte As,sociates, limic 12/ 10/ 2014 LGA Reallgiriimeint- Fina Oesigrn 9/ X11/ 14...9/' 27/ 14 5,,324. 97 5, 3243-7

3138 2781284923 Shairp Rees Steally IMedit all Centers 1. 2/ 1. 0/ 2014 Medical Examination - 1.0/ 28/ 14 59, 00 1. 59400

27812856011 Medical Examinations ... 1. 0/ 30/ 1. 4 1. 00, 00

31, 39 473971. South Coast Emergency Vehicle Services 12/ 1,0/ 2014 Hydraulic Fluinrip 857. 81, 857. 81

3.1-40 Dec"'1. 4 Standard Irlisuir-airice Company 12/ 1. 0/ 201. 4 L o ing Te ir inn D: sa lbi 1 1i ty 1l VISU ra nce Dec".1. 4 1, 698, 29 1, 69& 29

314. 1. 3.17230878 State of CA Industrial Relations 12/ 10/ 201. 4 OSHA Assessiment 5, 10010,00 5, 000m

31-42 35490.9 Sun Had Com1painy 1211.0/ 203A Uniform Allowance Drurn 1- 1/ 24/ 14 1. 43. 46 1. 43, 46

3.1. 43 Swairil Swain, lirene 1. 2/ 1. 0/ 201. 4 Refk.jirld/ Swaiiri, lireirie/ Del,):) sit Ree Ctir 11/ 30/ 14 2100. 100 200, 00

31.44 00002981. 2 The East County Californian 12/ 10/ 2014 01rdiinairice # 425 Published 1-1/ 27/ 14 38. 50 301- 00

000029812 Ordinance # 426Published 11/ 27/ 1. 4 63, 00

00030027 Notice of Public Heaririig- TM 60/ PIDP.1.40- 002 1. 2/ 4/ 14 1. 99, 50

3145 38351. 24 I. -JS Bank 1. 2/ 10/ 2,014 Adirnin IFees- 201.0 Bands: 11/ 1/ 14- 1. 0/ 31/ 15 2, 420, 00 2, 420, 00

31. 46 Dec9 14 Va ntage Poi ril Tir a irl if e ir Age ints- 4 57 12/ 10/ 2014 IICIMA (:')efeirred Compensation Pay Period Ending 12/ 9/ 1. 4 280, 77 28037

3147 9735762959 Veirimrii Wireless 1.2/ 1.0/ 2014 Fire Pl ioirle...'.1. 0/ 21/' 1. 4- I.I./ 20/ 14 268. 2,2 49628

9735762960 EMS Talblet/ 3"703612515...410002 ...: 1. X1/ 2:1./: 1. 4- 1. 1./ 241/ 14 38' 0'.1. 

9735781. 020 Engine Cell IPI ioines' l.0/ 21/ 14...'.1, 1/ 20/ 1.4 190 05

3148 11/ 19/ 2014 Wilson, Chrustopher 1. 2/ 10/ 2014 Uir- liffoirim Allowance - Wlkoirii' 11/ 19/ 14 1. 7438 34545

12/ 01/ 1. 4 FSA Relimbuirsernent 12/ 1/ 14 1. 71." 07

3149 B8073 A Pot Rentals 3- 2/ 1- 7/ 2014 Port lulls Restiroom Rental Borifire 12/ 5/ 14 262- 60 262 60

31150, Airideirsoir- ii Anderson, Judith 12/ 17/ 2014 IRefuirld/ Aindeirsoin, juditi/ Delposit- Com Ctir 12/ 11/ 14 300. 00 300. 00

3151 6002004 AT& T 12/ 17/ 2014 Fire IBacku. ulp Phone Line 11/ 1/ 14- 11/ 30/ 14 3169 31- 69

3152 5 65 66171,38 AutoZoine, Irlic, 12/ 17/ 20- 1. 4 Brake Light Bul b , Duiralast Battery 107, 87 1. 42, 55

5656629758 Di sell Exhaust Fluid 34, 68

31153 582890 9 IBJ',!! Rentals 12/ 17/ 201A Equipment Rental Auger Post 1-- 1ole Two Person 43. 20 145. 20

583966 9 Equipment Rental Sphitteir Log 10200

3154 1116357 1I N Boot World Un,ic. 12/ 17/ 2014 Work Boots Mein doza, Jr 235 40 235, 40

3'155 25833363 Broadcast MusUc k --mc 12/ 17/ 20- 1. 4 Music Licensiirig' 1. 2/ l./'1. 4...'I,' I,/ 30/ 15 33000 33000

31516 J a iri' l 5 Caffornia Der-D' W Networlk hrw, 7/ 20. 11. 2/ 1 - A Deriital hnsuirance J a iri' l 5 461, 10 46,110

3157 Calvary Calvary Cha.:)ell of Lemon Grove 12/ 13/ 2014 Refuirid/ Calvary Chalpel/ Delposit Coirn Ctir 12/ 14/ 14 20000 20000



31.58 999867 Cannon Pacific Services Inc,, 12/ 17/ 20.14 Street Sweelping/ Power Washing .- NoV14 6, 1011! , 1, 2' 6, 05129

31.5119 H9 c,17 14 Cathleein' Till or Birenda Wardrilp 12/ 17/ 2014 Council IMainrn IPllates 21. 60 471, 47

For IRetty Cash) Mileage - Russeli 11/ 4/ 14 -' 11/ 20/ 14 20, 55

Mileage .- IRu. ussllll ' 7/ 15/ 14- 10/ 20/ 14 4826

CatS Molded Coulpleir 431

Locking Electricai Hatch 47 61

Coffee - Fire Captain Reciruitiment 1495

5D Planning Directors AssoNleeturn g.- Deviries, Dick 40Q00

Mileage .- Devries 10/ 9/ 14.-10/ 13/ 14 44. 07

Reali Estate Copy Fees -City Assessor' s 400

Parking for SD Planning Directors Mtg 800

Fee for Copies of Conformed 4, 00

Mileage Boyce 10/ 7/ 14, 10/ 9/ 14, 1-1/ 6/ 14 58, 31

Mileage Boyce 12/ 1/ 14.- 12/ g/ 14 24,, 58

Mileage .- Taminn! 10/ 9/' 14.- 1' 1/ 3/ 14 46, 33

Lunch - INotalryTirafiriling.- II acias 19, 20

Plug Cutter Set 14 02

Bonfire Supplies 19459

Canton & LGA Cleanuip.-Grew IRafireshinnents 3209

3,169 11/ 11/ 2014 City of Chula Vista 12/ 17/ 2014 After IHouirs Calls- 11/ 11/ 14 1195_ 82 16, 762, 61

1-1/ 14/ 2014 After IHouirs Calls- 11/ 14/ 14 1.! 95,' 82. 

11/ 21/ 2014 After Houirs Cafls- 1.1/ 2-1/ 14 11, 9' 5" B2. 

AR135872 Animal Control Services- Nov" 14

3' 1. 161 16810 City of ILa Mesa 12/ 17/ 2014 H1  1W Service, 9/ 6/ 14 967,50 IP919k62

16838 HIHW Service: 10/ 18/ 14 48115

16858 Overtime Reirniburseimeint .- Gunter 11/ 12/ 14 470, 87

3162 1- 771178 Cloud Security Systeirnis 12/ 17/ 2014 Alarm Systeim Monitoring Svc - Rec Ctir- Jain1- Dec31, 2015 21& 00 69 6. 00

1_ 771485 Alarm System Monitoring Svc - Sir C-tr Back Sidg fainl.-1Dec3l, 2015 24000

L772115 Allairim System Monitoring Svc -, Sir Ctr Front 1311dg Jan1.- Dec31, 2015 240, 00

3163 15CTOFLGN05 County of San Diego- RCS 12/ 17/ 2014 800 1M1  Q Network - Nov' 114 3', 917 15 10 3, 017, 50

3164 11/ 29/ 14 Cox Coirnimunications 12/ 17/ 2014 Community Center Internet Svc- 11/ 30/ 14- 12/ 29/ 14 75 00 584, 25

12/ 01/ 14 Fire PhoineService 12/ 1/ 14.-12/ 31/ 14 38238

12/ 05/ 14 PhoineService 3131 School Lin .- ' 12/ 4/ 14--1/ 3/ 15 97 14

12/ 07/ 14 Fine Backulp lPhoirle Service 12/' 7/'. 14.- 1/ 6/ 15 2933

3165 O. SIP 60349 Department of industriali Relations 12/ 17/ 2014 Workers Coirnp Adirnin Assessinnent - FY"' 15 2, 1192, 351 2„ 192 3! 5

3166 28378 Dolikkein Engineering 12/ 1' 7/ 20. 14 St Dedications - 10/ 1/ 14- 11/ 30/ 14 1, 92500 1, 925. 00

3167 12/ 8- 1-1/ 14 Esgil Corporation 12/ 17/ 20-14 ' 75% Building Fees 12/ 8/ 14.- 12/ 11/ 14 4, 31c.i1" 910 4, 361, 90

3168 208488 lEvains Tire & Service Center 12/ 17/ 2014 Vehicle Repairs.''Tuine Up, Spark Plugs & Wires .-' 00 Ford Ranger 518 45 518x45

3169 22693 Excell Security, Inc. 12/ 17/ 2014 Senior Center Security Guaird - 12/ 12/ 14 1910, 0101 90, 00

3170 12/ 11/ 2014 Gamester, Sean 12/ 17/ 2014 Uniform Allowance .- Gamester 12/ 11/ 14 62„ 00 62, 00

31.7,1 IHeard IHard, Casandra 12/ 1-7/ 20-14 Re-fund/ l leair d, Casaindra/ Sewer Fees oveirpyimt. Jull" 11-Ju n" 14 1, 4.'51 44 1, 451, 44

3172 27114 IKTU .+ A Plainining + Landscape Arch i tect u ' 12/ 1' 7/ 20' 14 Prof Seirw Maiin Sit Promenade Phase 2,® 6Dc11 31, 2014 1.' S,„!912' 19 2'2 27, 961,,23

27182 Prof Seirw Main Sit Promenade Phase 2,® Nov.1- 30, 2014 1. 2., 191' 41., 191. 

IJ- Lainsing La ns 1 ing Jr p
Ro lbert 12/ 17/ 2014 Refund/ lLainsliingJr, Rolbeirt/ ll) iveirsion Depos1t/ 13' 14- 137/ C1D' 14 018 50191 0101 500, 00

31- 74 12/ 12/ 2014 ILavigne,. toe 12/ 17/ 2014 Uniform Allowance - 12/ 12/ 14 11613 49 163, 49

31. 75 18409 Lemon Grove Schooli District 12/ 17/ 2014 Boinfire Catering - Cookies,, Apples, Beef Chili W Cornbiread J16, 1C) IC) I ' gir 1, 906, 00

31. 716 2014487 Mairtin & Chapman Co 12/ 17/ 2014 Certificates of Eiection & Oaths of Office .- Mendoza, Joines 211!!! 6011 11 29

3'' 1. 77 12/ 11/ 14 Mt Veirinoin Leimoin Grove LLC 1211 7/ 2014 Refuind/ Mt Vernon LG/ Mveirsion DeposR/ CD14.- 0019/ B14.- 537 50000 500, 00

H1 7 s 184735 Ninyo & Moore 12/ 17/ 2014 Valencia/ Afir Moinitoring.-Oct"14 9119 510 9,19, 50

31. 79 18891 Opp & Vairco LUP 12/ 17/ 2014 Prof Svc: CityMairlk Project .- IMov' 14 25:5 001 25500



3180 1. 238 Pacific IP 12/ 17/ 2014 8 Port Dijgltall Station PCB & New Digitall Phoine- 1. 1/ 18/ 14 930,40 1, 065' 40

1239 Phone Rejpafirs - . 1. 2/ 2/ 14 135, 00

3181 Dec 1.4 IPLIIC SBD Grand Island 12/ 17/ 201.4 Deintall Uinsuirairice - (.) ec' 1.4 3, 84160 3, 84160

31. 82 615 SC Services Inc 1. 2/ 1. 7/ 20'.1. 4 Concrete Work Curb & Gutteir-, Sidewalk InrilproverneintS Glell,:)e IRR 3, 200, 00 3, 20000

3 183 Nov 14 SDGE 12/ 1- 7/ 2014 Gas & Electric Nov"14 20, 663, 57 20, 663.57

31-94 561.00021.94 Siemens Industry linc, 1. 2/ 1-7/ 2014 Traffic Signall Maintenance- INov".1. 4 1, 222, 00 2, 66823

5620005566 Traffic Response CaI1 Outs N ov'. 1. 4 1, 446,13

3185 474025 South Coast Emergency Veh Service-, 12/ 17/ 20.1.4 Vehicle Rell:.mirs IE210 3, 483. 85 1, 48385

31, 86 5325 Spirling VaHey I awn IMoweirSlhop 1. 2/ 1' 7/ 20-14 Saw Chains 6156 61. 56

3187 Stimt 1. 1./ 2. x#/ 1. 4 StajpUes 12/ 17/ 20' 1. 4 Office Supplies 54468 544, 68

3188 071. 072 State of Cakfornia- Justice 12/ 1. 7/ 201. 4 IFilrngeir-print All:.)ps Nov"14 12800 12800

3189 672765 Superior Ready Mix Concrete LP 1. 2/ 17/ 2014 As pha It 3/ 8 it - G 11 e b e St Res u irf a ci ing 22, 300. 04 22, 30004

31. 90 4421.7 The E:. ast County Cali foiriniain, 1. 2/ 17/ 201. 4 Ordinance 4426 Published 1. 2/ 1' 1./ 1. 4 6650 10850

4423. 8 Oird i n anc e # 425 Pulblished 12/ 111J14 4200

3191 roirres Tair-ires, Valentina 12/ 17/ 2014 Refund/' Toirire.s, Vallev-o- l[, Iiiria/' jlecurity & ('.)elposit LBIH 12/ 13/ 1. 4 51& 00 516 00

31. 92 7849801,....3 Trugireeir- ii II... andcaire 12/ 1. 7/ 20!1. 4 II.. aindscaj;:.)e Maliriteinaince Nov'„114 9,447.00 9,447v00

3193 Stirnt. 1. 1/ 24/ 14 U S. Ba n k Co ir ll) o irate Payme in t Sys te irn s 1- 2/ 17/ 2014 Station Supplies 3. 80 4, 19 2 J.7

Switch Box IKit 28, 60

Fixed Asset PiroSeirles Software 269,,00

Printing- IHealtlhn & Wellness Element 250, 38

H - tell ..- IMHC Conf e ir e inc e-.1 a m es, 1. 9038

MMASC Golf Tournament 279 18

2015 Annual Public Agency Risk IManageirs Coinf- Regisu.-ation 350, 00

IHotell Deposit- Risk Mainageirs Confeireirice/ James/ IFeb7.44 221. 13

Certified "Trafinirig Webinair for Contractors 99, 100

Kidcheck Monthly IFee 59.99

Daycairinp Supplies 127. 65

Training Serninair- Managing Multiple Piriorities.-Goinzalez 11/ 12 49x00

Boinflire Supplies 72, 30

Sport ILoclkilrng Cage Storage 315. 32

Girlind Raills 27630

R ef un d ..- Do IJc / Te sti ing IMod u I e 3500

5 Wash & Wax Scalp 69. 1. 2

5Gall Dispensing Rack Only -Plastic 1. 88, 74

Foaming Car Wash/ Airitifireeze & Coolairit 31, 08

Plumbing Supplies 24. 72

Ref reshiments- Public Safety CornmWee Mtg 26,15

Brkf st/ Sinacks/ Luinch- Fi ire Captain Recruitinnent- 2 Days 27135

Airfaire to Sacirameirito..- Sessoin- IH! ist it II Iurall Award 11/ 20/ 14 1. 99, 20

Pairlding foir CCI MA Meeting 9. 25

Toineir- City Il lainager' s IFax Machine 27, 68

Registiration- 2015 New Council Mernber Acaderny- Meindoza 550. 00

Airfaire to Sacramento Mendoza.- INew Cincll IMMmber Acadeirny 202, 20

Union Tiribuine Subscription 34. 85

3194 Veizaga Veizaga, Victor 12/ 17/ 2014 Ref u ind/ Vei za ga, Vi cto r/ Dev I inn 1pa c It IFe es/ B 13- 0 74 4, 109, 00 4, 109, 00

31. 95 7054,1357 Vulcan materials 12/ 17/ 2014 Asphalt 86, 40 86, 40

3196 2U110 ZuIlo,. Johin 12/ 17/ 2014 Refuind/ Zullllo,..Iohin/ Deposlit- Coirru fir , 12/ 13/ 1. 4 200. 00 20000

3197 0155922 Zumair k-idustiries, Inc 12/ 17/ 2014 Sigin, Frosts 1, 782, 90 2, 271, 21

0155834 Sign Posts 48831

3198 11 Vol IIS 110

3199 010 VOID ' 0* 

3200 2753 ID- MaEingfineeiring Inc 12/ 1712014 Training fair Cons Uructloin Stoirirnwateir Plain Review & Inspections 2, 50000 10, 650, 00

2756 2014 Storimwater Quality Monitoring 8'. 150, 00



3201 WD - 0103547 State Water Resources Control Board 12/ 17/ 2014 Annual Stormwater & Wastewater Permit Fee- 7/ l/ 14- 6/ 30/ 15 14, S 6 6, 11) 0 14, 56600



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1. 0

Dept. Citv Attornev

Item Title: Waive Full Text Reading of All ordinances on the Agenda

Staff Contact: James P. Lough, City Attorney

Recommendation: 

Recommendation: The City Council waives the full text reading of all ordinances included in

this agenda. Ordinances shall be introduced and adopted by title only. 

Environmental Review: 

MI Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section! 

Public Information: 

f None Newsletter article

f Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

None. 

IF - 1 Negative Declaration
IF] Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

JE] Neighborhood meeting



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. -: 1. 0

Mtg. Date January_6, 2015

Dept. Mavor' s office

Item Title: Appointment of City Councilmembers to committees, Commissions and

Boards

Staff Contact: Mary Teresa Sessom, Mayor

Recommendation: 

Ratify the Mayor' s City Councilmember assignments to committees, commissions and

boards. 

Item Summary: 

The 2015 Commission, Boards & Committees Appointments ( Attachment A) identifies City
Council appointments to various committees, commissions and boards. It is recommended that

the City Council accept the appointments to these committees, commissions and boards. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

0: Categorical Exemption, Section

Negative Declaration

DMitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information: 

None El' Newsletter article 0"'Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 
Notice published in local newspaper = Neighborhood meeting

Attachments: 

A. 2015 Commission, Boards & Committees Appointments



MINVERS; rAIN „:-.... ", ;  u; w .,.+°^ r..,.,.,.,...: rrr uuuuuuuuuuuuuffircflrcrt

Attachment A
LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

2015 COMMISSIONS, BOARDS & COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS

Commission/ Board/ Committee Meeting Location/ Contact Information
Designated Council

Seats Appointment
y

City/School District
Collaboration Committee

Quarterly February, May, August, November

3
d

Wednesday a@ 7: 30am

East County Economic Development
Council ( ECEDC) 

3'
d

Wednesday a@ 7: 30arn
rvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvry

Heartland Communications

Lemon Grove School District

Board Room) 

8925 LincolnLemon Grove, CA 91945

Marjie Cappiello ( 619) 825- 3819

mcappiellolemongrove. ca.govl

ECEDC

1998 Friendship Drivep
El Cajon, CA 92920 ( 619) 258- 3670

lad s. selfrid a eastcount edc. or

Council

Seats ( 2) 

Council Seat

Alternate

Sessom

Vasquez

Gastil

Mendoza

Facility Authority ( HCFA) Ronald Reagan Community Center

Quarterly— January, April, July, October 195 East Douglas, El Cajon, CA 92420 Council Seat Vasquez

to
4 Thursday @ 4. 00 pm

Valerie Nellis ( 619) 44' 1- 1623 Alternate Mendoza

vnell is sd recc. or

compensation for attendance) 

Heartland Fire Training
Heartland Fire Training FacilitytyFacilitAuthority( HFTFA) 

1301 N. Marshall EI Cajon CA 92020 Council Seat Vasquez

Quarterly
2nd

Thursday a@ 4: 04pm Dave Miller, ( 619) 441- 1693 Alternate Mendoza

Fire Chief Rick Sitta
mv

davem@heartlandfiretraining. org

Helix Water District

Water Representative & liaison Sandy Janzan – Board Secretary
HWD sponsorships for 619) 466--0585 Council Seat Mendoza

Water Education Foundation tours sandv. 4anzanCa7helixWater. org

31year for 3 persons) 

League of California Cities Four Points Sheraton

Executive Committee Luncheon mtg. 8110 Aero Drive, San Diego, CA 92123
Council Seat Sessom

nd

Monthly—
2nd

Monday a ' I . 39am
Linda Hascup, Coronado City Clerk

cit clerk coronado. ca. us
Alternate Mendoza

no meeting April, July, October) 2013 Secretary) 

League of California Cities
lll111llllllll1111111111111111111111I1llllllllllllllllllllllllll111 Council Seat Gastit

Legislative Committee

League of California Cities' t 
As appointed Council Seat

in; 

Conference Voting Delegate prior to

cotr,oine

Updated 12/ 23/ 14) Page 1



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

2015 COMMISSIONS, BEARDS & COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS

Commission/ Board/ Committee Meeting Location/ Contact Information
Designated Council

Seats Appointment

Metro Commission I
MWWD MOC II Auditorium

Metro Wastewater JPA
8192 Topaz Way, San Diego, CA 92123 Council Seat Jones

Monthly -
1St

Thursday @Noon Lori Peoples ( 619) 548- 2934 Alternate City Engineer

compensation for attendance) 
ir)eoples(a-ci. chula- vista. ca. us

MTS
Metropolitan Transit System ( MTS) 1255 Imperial Ave. # 1000

Usually 2"
d

or 3 Thurs @ 9: OOam
San Diego, CA 92101- 7490 Council Seat Gastil

10 floor board room) ) Alternate Jones
compensation for attendance) Nikki Machado ( 619) 557- 4515

Nikki. Machado@sdmts.com

SANDAL Board of Directors SANDAL

2"
d

Friday— Policy @ 10:
15am401 B Street

7tn

Floor Board Room) 

Council Seat Sessom

4th

Friday— Board @ 9: OOam* San Diego, CA 92101
Alternate Jones

dark in August Tessa Lero ( 619) 699- 1991
2

d
Alternate Gastil

compensation for attendance) Tessa. LeroCcD-sandaq. ora

San Diego Local Agency County Administration Center
Formation Commission ( LAFCO) 1600 Pacific Highway, Room 302

East County Representative
San Diego, CA 92101 Council Seat Vasquez

Monthly -
1St

Monday @ 9: OOam
Tamaron Luckett 858 614- 7755

Tama ron. luckettCa sdcountv. ca. gov

San Diego East County
Chamber of Commerce Liaison

Council Seat Jones

San Diego Area Wastewater MWWD MOC II Auditorium

Management District 9192 Topaz Way, San Diego, CA 92123 Council Seat Jones

Once Yearly — Announced
Lori Peoples ( 619) 548- 2934

Ipeogles( a-)-ci. chula- vista. ca. us

United Way Representative Council Seat Mendoza

Updated 12/ 23/ 14) Page 2



LEMON GROVE' CITY COUNCIL, 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 

Mtg. Date Jiti,i, g 1 5

Dept. v o
pmit , t vices, 

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP14- 0002 and

Tentative Map TM0060 Authorizing an 84 Unit Residential Condominium

Development on 1. 14 Acres at 3515 olive Street

Staff Contact: Carol Dick, Director of Development Services! 

Recommendation: 

1) Conduct the public hearing; and

2) Adopt resolutions ( Attachment D & E) approving Planned Development Permit PDP14- 

0002 and Tentative Map TM0060. 

Item Summary: 

The proposed project is located at 3515 Olive Street in the Main Street Promenade District in the

Downtown Village Specific Plan area. The site consists of 6 parcels, 3 were recently occupied by
Culligan' s Water Softening business and the other parcels are City owned. The applicant is

requesting authorization of an 84 unit condominium development. The project includes a request

to vacate unimproved public right- of-way near the existing cul- de- sac in the Transit Mixed Use 5 & 
7 Zone and Land Use Designation area. The Planning Commission recommends approval and the
attached staff report (Attachment A) describes the project in detail. 

Fiscal Impact: 

No fiscal impact. 

Environmental Review: 

F- 1 Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

El None El Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. DVSP Map Excerpts

C. Correspondence

D. Resolution ( TM0060) 

E. Resolution ( PDP14- 002) 

F. Environmental Checklist & Vicinity Map

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

M Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

EJ: Neighborhood meeting

G. Exhbit A — Provided to City Council and available at City Hall for review



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 2

Mtg. Date January 6, 2015

Attachment A

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP14-0002 and

Tentative Map TM0060 Authorizing an 84 Unit Residential Condominium

Development on 1. 14 Acres at 3515 olive Street

Staff Contact: : Carol Dick, Director of Development Services: 

Application Summary: 

APPLICANT/ OWNER: I Citymark Development, 3818 Park Boulevard, San Diego, CA 92103

PROPERTY APNs: 480-443- 17, 181 301 311 331 37 and public right-of-way. The

LOCATION: site is located at 3515 Olive Street. 

PROJECT AREA: I
1. 18 gross acres ( 51, 401 sq. ft.) gross and 1. 14 acres ( 49,658 sq. ft.) 

net. 

EXISTING ZONE: 
Transit Mixed Use 5 & 7 ( TMU5 & TMU7), Downtown Village Specific

Plan ( DVSP) 

GENERAL PLAN Transit Mixed Use 5 & 7 ( TMU5 & TMU7), Downtown Village Specific

LAND USE Plan ( DVSP). Minimum density is 45 dwelling units per acre or 50

DESIGNATION: dwelling units minimum. 

North: Mixed Use Senior Housing Apartments. 

SURROUNDING South: Contractor' s warehouse and office. 

PROPERTIES: East: Main Street Promenade and cul- de- sac

West: Olive Street and Automobile Repair and Contractors

A mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact will be filed

subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project

by the City Council. The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this
project identified potential impacts associated with: Hazards & 

ENVIRONMENTAL

IMPACT: 
Hazardous Materials Hydrology & Vater Quality' Noise' Public

Services/ Recreation, Transportation & Traffic. A draft MND was filed

with the County Clerk prior to the Planning Commission public

hearing and the public review period will expire at the end of the

business day on December 26, 2014

Discussion: 

The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing at its December 22, 2014 regularly

scheduled meeting and recommended approval ( 3- 0) of the project as proposed and

conditioned in the Resolutions. The Planning Commission meeting included a discussion about

N



Attachment A

the proposed five parking space deficiency. Staff informed the Planning Commission that the

five space deficiency represented less than a five percent modification of the standard. Also, 
staff informed the Commissioners of the recent discussion at the City Council December 16, 
2014 meeting and the results of the parking survey conducted by City staff in October and

November 2014. Based on that information, the Planning Commission recommends approval of
the project. 

Site and Project Description

Citymark Development filed a complete application on October 15, 2014, December 17, 2014
and December 18, 2014. 

The project is located in the area governed by the Downtown Village Specific Plan ( DVSP). The
DVSP requires any project that includes the demolition of existing buildings or construction of

new buildings to obtain approval of a Planned Development Permit from the Planning
Commission. The project also includes a subdivision map for condominium purposes and

requires that the Planning Commission advise the City Council. This staff report provides a

description of the existing site, the proposed project, and the conformance to the regulatory
framework. 

The project site consists of six separate assessor parcels and public right- of-way to be vacated
as a part of the Tentative Map. The site is located at 3515 Olive Street and extends around the

existing mid -block cul- de-sac to the Main Street Promenade. Three of the properties are

developed with commercial warehouse buildings and surface parking area previously occupied
by Culligan water Softening. The three other sites are owned by the City of Lemon Grove and
the structures were demolished during construction of the Main Street Promenade. 

The project includes vacation of unimproved right- of-way around the existing cul--de-sac that

relies on future redevelopment of private property and real property dedication. The intent of this

right- of-way was to eventually connect with Lemon Avenue at a future four way stop. The

private property was recently acquired by a contracting company and the new owners have not

expressed interests in redeveloping the property. The vacation of the right- of-way would

eliminate the potential for through traffic from North Avenue through the cul- de- sac to Olive
Street or Lemon Avenue. Although eliminating this segment reduces choices of travel paths, 

the elimination of through traffic maintains the interior cul- de- sac road as a road which provides

access to the development on that block including the Main Street Promenade. 

The proposed project consists of 84 condominium units with a rooftop terrace of 2, 210 sq. ft. 
and a fitness room. The project provides approximately 97 percent of the required parking and

proposed deviations to accommodate tandem spaces and space dimension variations are

included in this request. The physical improvements for the project include demolition of the

existing buildings, grading and excavation, construction of a three story structure ( four stories as

seen from olive Street), public street dedication and improvements, hardscape, landscape and
irrigation, and lighting. 

The site does not contain vegetation and slopes downwards approximately 4 vertical feet from
the northeasterly corner to the most southwesterly corner of the project. Because of historical
use of the site, conditions of grading have been recommended and the project as designed

avoids substantial soil disturbance. 

The State of California has established Regional Housing Needs Allocation ( RHNA) targets for

each city in order to ensure adequate housing stock. The RHNA targets create a threshold for
cities in order to obtain grant and transportation funding. This project works towards the City' s
goals of meeting its RHNA figures by providing 84 units towards the overall unit goals. In this

El



Attachment A

case, the City is assuming that market rate condominium units would provide additional units for
above moderate income households. The City is obligated to provide 166 above moderate or

moderate income level dwelling units. There are approximately 146 units permitted or about to

be permitted and the approval and construction of this project would provide 64 dwelling units

above the RHNA allocation for Lemon Grove. 

Land Use Designation and Zone

The existing zone and land use designation for this site is the Transit Mixed Use 5 & 7 JMU5 & 

TMU7) zone and land use. Transit Mixed Use 5 is the mid- range density zone for the transit
land use area in the DVSP. Transit Mixed Use 7 is the most intensive and the highest density
land use designation in the DVSP. The development standards for the Transit Mixed Use 5 & 7

zones/ land use and how the proposed project conforms to those criterion standards are listed in

the following table. 

The project is located in the Main Street Promenade District in the Downtown Village Specific

Plan. This district is oriented around the trolley station located on Main Street north of

Broadway. The plan encourages high density residential uses. This mixed use district allows for

a mixture of retail commercial uses oriented to commuters and local residents, office uses that

would benefit from the proximity to public transit and high- density residential uses. The plan

further encourages that parking requirements in this District be reduced due to the proximity of
the future Integrated Transit Station. Underground or tuck -under parking is the preferred vehicle
parking design on- site. 

Criteria Transit Mixed Use 5 & 7 Citymark

TMU5/ 7) Standards

Density 35-45 dwelling units per acre 73 dwelling units per acre b

du/ ac) minimum

YrY Y

Assumed 150% ( 68 du/ ac) for 162% of Minimum. 

DVSP Environmental Analysis. 

a,c,e,,,„,,,,,„,,,,,, Open sp Encouraged , Not Requiredg 21210 SF rooftop deck
rvrvn

Pa rkland Parkland Fee ( CEQA) 50, 481 ( credit for 5 units for

rooftop deck) 

Min Lot Area .. .................... 
RRRRRRRRRRR„„ 

2 p 000 S F 49, 658 S F

Min. Lot Width/ Depth
R R R..... 

100 -feet x 160 - feet Irregular 282 feet x 305 feet
mr.... ',.,.,. rt, ..... ...... 

Setbacks

suuuuuuuuuuii niri¢ 

Build -to line within 1 - foot of the
fr ._« rrrrrrvnironuuir;;nr;;nr;;nimivnu;n irrrrvm im n r, ._. 

See site plan. Accessibility, 

property line and not less than Citronica II locations, and

5 -feet from ultimate right -of- emergency access warrant

way. deviation from absolute

dimensions. 

Building Height 85 -feet or 7 stories 53 -feet and 4 levels including
parking garage. 

Max. Building Coverage None established.. Approximately 62°/° 

Assumed 80% for

Environmental Analysis, 

Loading Space Residential — 1 space for more 1 spacece located on entry

than a 12 -unit development_ t driveway



Attachment A

Office/ Retail — 1 van space

Bicycle Parking 1 rack for every 10 required I Bicycle secured storage room

parking spaces. for 25 bicycles. 

Building Design

The development standards established for projects built within this zone are intended to create

a strong street edge. In order to accommodate a strong street edge, the setback requirements

should be thought of as a " build -to" line rather than an open yard requirement and require that a

building be built within one foot of the ultimate right- of-way. The configuration of the lot is
irregular and the building provides a strong street edge along Olive Street and the cul- de- sac. 
The building is designed as an urban residential building with the open space occurring on a

portion the rooftop. The rooftop terrace provides BBQs, tables, and seating areas. It overlooks

the Main Street Promenade and provides the desired " eyes on the street" concept for the park

as well as the main entry of the building. The site is landscaped to soften the building edges

and to accommodate drainage facilities consistent with water quality objectives. 
The building floor plan consists of 84 -condominium units consisting of one -bedroom units ( 45), 

two- bedroom units ( 35), three-bedroom units ( 3), a management office, a mail room, two

elevators, a bicycle storage room, recycle & trash room, a fitness room ( approximately 550 sq. 
ft.), rooftop terrace ( 2, 210 sq. ft.), and parking garage. 

The architectural design of the project emphasizes the common areas ( entries, lobby, elevator

shafts) in a different manner than the residential units of the structure. Each unit has a balcony
and the railing designs are yet to be determined. 

The project as viewed from Olive Street (West Elevation) consists of a four- story design with an
interesting architectural facade with variations in colors, materials and geometric

protrusions/ erosions. The garage level appears as a foundation base to the building, but
provides opportunities to incorporate three artistic panels ( design to be determined) that

accommodate the ventilation requirements for the garage. The main entry to the building occurs
on the east side of the structure. There is an exit door that occurs on the west side of the

building for existing purposes only and does not represent a public entry to the building. 
The project as seen from the north and south exhibits individual unit and balconies accented

with different colors and materials. The architectural elevation facing east towards the Main
Street Promenade appears as a three- story structure with the main entry to the building clearly
accentuated. An external staircase and ramp lead to the front entry which is a large expanse of
glass. Above the lobby is the fitness room that also has a large window. The rooftop terrace
contains a shade structure that sits above the entry portion of the building. 

The maximum building height for the structures in Transit Mixed Use ( 7) is 7 stories or 85 feet
and in Transit Mixed Use ( 5) is five stories or 65 feet. The project height is approximately 53 - 
feet ( elevator penthouse) from the highest point. The mechanical housing and other rooftop

structures do not count towards the overall building height. The original goal of the specific plan
was to accommodate the highest residential density and commercial intensity in this area and

this area was identified for the location of the highest structures in the downtown area. 

However, after developers discussed the constraints involved with the construction of buildings
that high, city staff realized that the current market would not support construction at that height. 
However, it is apparent that the current developer is able to achieve the desired higher density
without reaching 7 -stories or 85 feet by generating a mix of smaller dwelling units. 

s



Attachment A

Grading

The finish grade of the project is very close to the existing grades at the site. The finish floor of

the garage is approximately 443 feet Mean Sea Level ( MSL) where the underlying grade is

generally at 440 feet MSL. 

Landscaping/ Screening

The proposed Transit Mixed Use zones are urban development zones and the landscape

requirements focus on a desired street character. This zone does not require specific area

requirements for on- site landscape although there are street tree requirements. The specific

plan requires the street trees on Olive Street to be vertical tree types planted at a rate of 1 tree

for every 25 -feet of frontage. In this case, the landscape plan shows 4 trees along olive Street
where 5 trees are required. The tree form has a vertical growth pattern that eventually

broadens and is known to be an acceptable street tree in urban areas. The proposed

landscape plan illustrates that the trees are planted consistent with the geometry of the building
and a fifth tree may not be appropriate to the design. 

Although there is not a requirement for a specified area of on- site landscape in the proposed

zone, the project includes landscaped areas around the building for aesthetic and drainage

reasons. The parking area is visible from the exterior of the site in certain areas, but the project

has provided landscape edges and in some locations, artistic panels will be used to add interest

to the edge. Conditions have been included in the Resolution of Approval which require the

preparation and submittal of a detailed landscape and irrigation plan and the execution of

maintenance agreements. 

The plans show an adequate area in the parking garage for recyclables and trash. 

There are mechanical rooms on each level of the structure. 

Traffic

A traffic analysis was not prepared for this project although three previous traffic studies and the
associated mitigation measures for projects in this area were utilized. The analysis concluded

that the existing and projected trips generated by the project do not create any significant traffic
impacts However, the analysis included an assumption that traffic may increase with the

Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment project and this project would contribute to the traffic at the

Broadway and Olive Street intersection as well as the Lemon Avenue and olive Street

intersection. The study recommends that the project contribute a proportional fair share fee

towards the signalization of Broadway and olive Street and for the stop sign controls at the

intersection of Lemon Avenue and Olive Street. A mitigation measure and conditions have

been included in the Draft Resolution of Approval. 

Off -Street Parking

The off- street parking requirements for projects in the Transit Mixed zones are as noted in the

table below. The TMU zone allows for credit for on -street parking. In this case, the parking

requirement for the project generates a demand of 125 residential spaces. The project design

provides 115 parking spaces on- site and a credit of four parking spaces is obtained for the on - 
street parking spaces fronting the project for a total deficit of 5 parking spaces. A waiver is

requested to allow deviations from the required number of spaces. The project includes all

compact dimensioned spaces where the standard allows for 75 percent of the required spaces

to be compact spaces. The project includes a larger compact space dimension than the Lemon

Grove standard compact space ( 8. 5' x 18' where 8. 5' x 15' is standard). The project is near

transit and the proposed space for bicycles exceed the requirement ( 25 where 12 required). 

The project also provides space for motorcycle parking. The TMU7 zone does not have a



Attachment A

requirement for guest parking for the residential units. The project includes tandem spaces and

the project will require that these spaces are assigned to the two bedroom units. A condition has
been included in the resolution requiring the CC& Rs to include this provision. Staff believes that

the project provides adequate offsets to approve the parking deviation request. 
m . ............ .......................................... . . .................... 

PARKING REQUI REM ENTS

Space AREA & USE PARKING SPACES

REQUIREDRATI................... ........O

Aesidential —One B. ...... .edroom 45 units . 251Unit 56

Residential — Two Bedroom ...., 3Gun its 1. 75/ unit 63
r. wwww. 

Residential Three Bedroom 3 units 2/ unit 6

Total Required ,,, .. ..
n,. n, 

125

Parking Provided off-site I 5
rrrr. .. .. .. .. .......... . . . .......... 

Total Provided . ........................................._ 
r. r. r. r. rrrrrrrrrrr r r r rr r r r„,, . 

120

Deficit 5

The project provides designated service and loading for the residential uses. This space is

located directly off of the entry drive near the garage entrance and is 14 feet by 20 feet in size. 
Open Space

The proposed Transit Mixed Use zone does not have specific requirements for open space

because of the urban infill character of this zone. However, this project includes the installation
of open space as follows: 

Common Open Space — 2, 219 sq. ft. and a 650 sq. ft. fitness room. 

Private Open Space — 60 sq. ft. average per unit in private balconies. 

Noise

The city of Lemon Grove General Plan and the Acoustical Analysis prepared for the Lemon
Grove Avenue Realignment Project noted that the site is located within an area that may be

affected by the traffic noise generated by vehicles on SR94, trolley alignment, and in the future, 
the Lemon Grove Realignment. The residential units facing SR94, and the trolley alignment

may be exposed to noise levels exceeding the 60 dbL noise thresholds as established by the
General Plan. Specific construction assemblies are required to be constructed to ensure that
the interior levels are reduced ( CBC). A letter from the acoustical consultant will be required to

verify that the construction plans show conformance with this requirement prior to issuance of a
building permit. These requirements have been included as conditions in the Draft Resolution
of Approval. 

Public Street Dedication and Improvement Requirements

The project site is located on Olive Street and an interior block cul- de- sac. Olive Street has

recently been classified as a Specific Plan Street as a part of the Lemon Grove Avenue
Realignment project. Fifteen feet of real property along the project frontage is required to be
dedicated for public right- of-way and has been shown on the project plans. Because the

schedules of the Realignment project and this project may be in conflict, the project is required

to dedicate the additional right- of-way and provide a temporary berm to protect overhead utilities

M



Attachment A

until they have been placed underground. These requirements have been included in the

Resolution of Approval. 

Undergrounding of overhead Utility Lines

Existing overhead utility lines located within the boundaries of the property or within the one- half
right-of-way abutting the subject property are required to be placed underground. The

inspection of the subject property revealed that there are power poles located on the frontage of
the property. The service on these poles were to be placed underground as a part of the Lemon
Grove Avenue Realignment project. Any new services to the project shall be placed

underground. A condition has been included in the Resolution of Approval requiring the

undergrounding of all new services to the proposed project. 

Sanitation District

The project will be connected to the Lemon Grove Sanitation District sewer system via laterals

to be maintained by the property owner. The project requires an easement bisecting the

property to accommodate the existing sewer main. The improvement plans and construction

shall be to the satisfaction of the city Engineer. 

Drainage/ Water Quality

The applicant has not prepared a Water Quality Technical Report and an on -Site Drainage

Study for this project at this time. The implementation, construction and on- going maintenance

of the project components must comply with Water Quality regulations and submittal of these

documents must accompany applications for improvement permits. Any recommendations in

these reports are considered mitigation measures of the Negative Declaration and a condition

has been included in the Resolution of Approval. A determination of substantial conformance

may be required if modifications to the project are required. 

Fire Department Requirements

The Fire Department has reviewed the proposed project as illustrated and requires that the

project comply with all applicable provisions of the California Fire Code and the California

Building Code to the satisfaction of the Fire Chief. 

Building Code Requirements

The Building Department has included a condition in the Resolution of Approval requiring that

the building and equipment comply with the applicable provisions of the California Building Code
to the satisfaction of the Building official. 

Lighting

Plans submitted for building permits must show conformance to the Title 24 Requirements. 

These requirements have been included as conditions in the Resolution of Approval. 

Signage

Signage must be consistent with the Lemon Grove Municipal Code Sign ordinance and staff

recommends that the project be allowed to process signage applications without having to

modify the approved Planned Development Permit. 

City of Lemon Grove

The city Manager of Lemon Grove is currently negotiating a final purchase agreement with the

applicant of the city owned properties for this project and the city Manager will be generating a
separate report for the city council regarding the purchase agreement. 

BE



Attachment A

Comments in Response to the Notice of Public Hearing and Environmental analysis
The City of Lemon Grove received no comments in response to the Notice of Public Hearing
and Environmental Analysis at the time this staff report was prepared. Staff will provide the City
Council at the time of the public hearing with any comments that may come in past the

distribution of the staff report. 

Expiration Date of the Planned Development Permit

Planned Development Permits expire within two years if the project has not commenced or if it
has not been vested. In this case, staff is requesting three years because of the complexity of
the improvements. This request has been included in the Resolution of Approval. 

Public Information: 

The Notice of Public Hearing was published in the December 4, 2014 edition of the East County
Californian and mailed to all property owners within 300 feet of the subject property. 

Conclusion: 

The Planning Commission recommends approval of the resolutions ( Attachments D & E). 

IM



L   

I

i114101, 14TH Aut

ylo 441% 

01

yyỳwÌIII 4 9u

N 
n

s

µ  

r

XI 1, 
L . 

i

lu M LA

0

f, nrt

I

ij 1f  A -
du rw

xnnnnnn' 

ua, 
BROADWAY

A VIS A0 ' C' 
IAl' I,

94,

II uy Mlle° IIIsrN111, 9 il v II1911 dP911 V 1111114101( IJJJJJII( IIII` ti55ldl / I/ NIIIIIIIII IJf41VfuIdV l

MN I

f
n , 

LEGEND VILLAGE COMMERCIAL ( 3y

h a` IPARKING

u ter yuy Uy * mmm I  TRANSPORTATION/

TROLLEY Chapter III — planning Districts and

Regulations

I uuuuuuuuuuul i Illiilli DOWNTOWN VILLAGE
BOUNDARY

a I

uuuuuuuuuuuuulluuuulululuulu

CIVIC I uul DISTRICTBOUNDARIES I III

IIII m

1

I o yplumm, Not 1

ar 1Irui" Nu P' 

Wry
r E' T' A . 

L, V ,

iil1) LAND USE

PLAID Figure
3 ti9u 

na

AMP

II

y o. 

0 , 

m

I 01 ORI89JL5
FT. 25 DUTAC

MI14. 

I VILLAGE COMMERCIAL
R5 5 67011IESf O

FT. OVIAC

MIN. TRANSIT MIXED-
USE3 STORIES145 FT.. 25 QWAC
Mur, 5 STORIES165 FT., 35 0U1AC
MIN, 7 STORIESAS FT., 4S 13I11AC

MIN COMM] EIRCIAL , I MIXED
USE 11

IUiAC

U EDIUIHIGH DENSITY
RESIDENTIAL 20

DUlAC

CIVIC  

u, 

e, 

COMMERCIAL 45

FT. RETAIL
COMMERCIAL 30

FT REMANUFACTURING TAIL MAN
G 45

FT. 

N

r
CIVIC 45

FT, a` IPARKING

u ter yuy Uy * mmm I  TRANSPORTATION/

TROLLEY Chapter III — planning Districts and

Regulations

I uuuuuuuuuuul i Illiilli DOWNTOWN VILLAGE
BOUNDARY

a I

uuuuuuuuuuuuulluuuulululuulu

CIVIC I uul DISTRICTBOUNDARIES I III

IIII m

1

I o yplumm, Not 1

ar 1Irui" Nu P' 

Wry
r E' T' A . 

L, V ,

iil1) LAND USE

PLAID Figure
3 ti9u 

na

AMP

II

y o. 

0 , 



Attachment B

alt   , 

X1

NOFOI- 1 AVIERIJIE44

111 

CIO WINNI

OliI 71119 p# 

dy, 

W ..................... 

I. .. .. . . 

14

fd 

4 1

lit
t„,. .. .. . Ir

tO

05, 1

J` 
If

Ilk' 

tyalw

ped33 ll'i 0 A LIM, N

ctossk) 

arm go

4g) 

r, 

lr11 41

10, Il

INTERN INAMN STREET PROMENADE
IM

Figure 7

IV — X410,
04Vr

9,ijJ S!&! I), 

Catlk  J
liar

r ' 

ul 
l

6,114"1 ov, F' lolm,4 VILLAX''llit," P11. AIN' I I



Attachment B

e

MMmmmmmm" n"mmmmmmmmnmmnmmmmmrcmmm rFmw
um•  

r/. f mmmmmm 101111i 

l,'* G O, 

k

n^"' Mm rorNl' W m4  

ATI. 

L CIPI CA
1, je'll

If

FUTURE

PHASE WOR

lo
ifyj

J
10

Of
I

JJ, o
0/140, 1KO " Jo

fP

if 41) 
I , /hI A l

6 til
fj

PUTIl J, 

II: ,-, ASE

0
Pc k' jiif 4

111,12

IV' 

j2
iip 1 4rJ

vtof

IIF
y

A, 

A

iT

fal

A h
I

rj,Of-ir r!'cAr Oil

r1ia 1 11°
N r, .. ........ 

F

JI

PA( j ETV — 1

ULTIMATE MAIN STREET PROMENADE N 
il

t
Figure 8

Wllilobjh yl, Fubhc Sir i' p & 
GR1()' V!: D1(..) i% vrq" r1oi% 1v' N

J, 

l

7 # it
lilrow, tolt I "sUP, 

iT

D"I f 1OA L) VVY'k,"Y
r1ia 1 11°

N r, .. ........ 

F

urr

A/Al, 

6

now bus

wfieA Z& 
14.), 

MVV

INf
4

LLJ

tl

D

Lki

LJ

plaza Z

I

LLJ

7,71

PA( j ETV — 1

ULTIMATE MAIN STREET PROMENADE N 
il

t
Figure 8

Wllilobjh yl, Fubhc Sir i' p & 
GR1()' V!: D1(..) i% vrq" r1oi% 1v' N



S1U 0 I 0 1
A IR C IH I T E C T S

Attachment C

Project Memorandum
2258 First Avenue

Son IDiego, Cofiforinia 9210- 1

DATE.. Decem b er 11, 2014t &M235.9262 F 619. 235 0522

PROJECT: CityMark Lemon Grove

TO; Carol Dick, City of Lemon Grove

FROM: clonberger, Studio E Architects

SUBJECT: Deviation Justifications

COPIESTO: File

MEMORANDUM: 

Ofive Strout Setback

The project is set furtheir baelk firom the ulbiTute Fight -of -way of live Street to adequately
tirunsition IbUildling foirim aloing theAreef f Foinin the, new Citiroinica 2 pirojectto the north and
fuu re ire. d e ve I o p m e int d est I in ed- to t h e :,,-,,o ut h  C it ro n Ica 2 d ed lica -ted a lar e r 1port ion of t h e 11 IF sine

to th e 0 11 live Fit reet r lig ht -of -way effect Well p u s hi in g t h e, 11 it lbu i 11 d i in g ea s rd. 0 u ir pr9ie ct wi I I lb e

situated closeto this seflDOCIL

Deviation Offsots ( for parking or other possible dBViatiOns) 

To offset t[i e sinus III d ev 1 a t I on n e ed e d .dor Ipa rk i ing., tine pi

raj e is pr vi d i n g. the fol  owin q
odditional fecitures, cis offisets, 

Enhanced Bicycle Pairklngw erisily accessible and generously accommodated

IL) licyelle p a ir ' 11 in 9 is p irov 1 Jed 11 in - true g a ir a y e Revel w 6 e re it its se c u re d an t h e ir

protected while at scree t level for easy itoH out iod use. 

Motorcycle Parl6iriq: thOUgh not specifically requir,eid to I pirov'ided, nnotoircycle

spaces are Iprovided Inicegarage. 

IRoof Terrace: A loirge ( 2, 2101 SIF) top level comirnon terrace its Ipirowded with ear y

elevator o ccess to pr vide o utd oor g cit h e h n 9 spa ce - fo it re sid e in ts 1 Inc lu d i rig

b a irbe q u es a nd sea ii in 9 a rens, T his te, rria c e is c ent ra I . y 1I oc cited a n d ove H oo ks
tIke park spore to -the er-ist. 

Fit ines s Fa c n I ity. A second  eve 1l f itmess it iFn us P irovide d th at is a va i 110 b le ' tO

tenants, The fitness focility is 1placed over the lobilbly entrance and facing
eastwo r iiinto the Ipa irk space to provide jpIeasa nt views, 

U14D OF MEVIDIRA1, 4CA- 110

M



Attachment D

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING TENTATIVE

CONDOMINIUM) MAP TM0060 AUTHORIZING THE SUBDIVISION OF 6 PARCELS INTO

ONE LOT OF EIGHTY FOUR CONDOMINIUM UNITS AT 3515 OLIVE STREET, LEMON

GROVE, CALIFORNIA.' 

WHEREAS, Citymark Development, filed a complete application for a Planned

Development Permit PDP14- 0002 and a Tentative Map TM0060 on October 15, 2014 and

December 17, 2014 to authorize a subdivision of 6 parcels into one lot containing eighty four
residential condominium units; and

WHEREAS, the proposed site includes six parcels ( APNs 480- 043- 17, 181 307 311 331
37) and the vacation of public right--of-way; and

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration, ND15- 01, of Environmental Impact

regarding Planned Development Permit PDP14- 0002 and Tentative Map TM0060 will be filed

subsequent to its adoption and the approval of the proposed project; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed on December 4, 2014 and held by the
Lemon Grove Planning Commission on December 22, 2014; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds that the tentative map complies with the

findings of fact required to approve this project pursuant to Municipal Code Section 16. 16.400

because the project complies with the State Subdivision Map Act; the existing lot is a legal lot; 
the proposed subdivision creates more than 5 units; the proposed subdivision complies with the

requirements of the Subdivision ordinance; the map and design or improvements are consistent
with applicable general and specific plans; the site is physically suitable for the type of

development; and the site is physically suitable for the proposed density of development; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds that the proposed vacation of the public

right- of-way as identified in Exhibit " A" of the tentative map is consistent with the Lemon Grove
General Plan and pursuant to Government Code 66434( g) because it maintains sufficient right- 

of-way for circulation and reduces potential through traffic on a private driveway utilized by the
surrounding developments; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the Tentative Map
TM0060 to the City Council; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed on December 4, 2014 and held by the
Lemon Grove City Council on January 6, 2015; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 16. 12. 280, the City Council finds that it is

impractical in this particular case for this subdivision to conform fully to the Design Standards of
the Subdivision ordinance because the Subdivision ordinance does not account for

condominium sized lots and waivers granted as part of the approval of this project are found to

conform to the spirit and purpose of the Subdivision Map Act and of the Subdivision ordinance
of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby makes the following findings: 

1. The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements are not likely to cause

substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or



Attachment D

their habitat because the property has no environmentally protected resources as

discussed in the Mitigated Negative Declaration; and

2. The proposed Tentative Subdivision Map JM0060) is consistent with the land use

designation of the Lemon Grove General Plan and Downtown Village Specific Plan; and

3. The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of development because public

utilities will be available to serve the proposed density; and

4. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not cause serious public

health problems because public services ( e.g., sewer, water, gas, and electricity) will be

provided to the subdivision; and

5. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements do not conflict with easements, 

acquired by the public at large, for access through, or use of property within the

proposed subdivision as defined under Section 55474 of the Government Code, State of

California; and

6. The design and improvements of the proposed subdivision map complies with the

requirements of the State Subdivision Map Act and the City of Lemon Grove Subdivision
Ordinance except as specifically waived for the purpose of creating condominiums; and

7. The design of the project will not create an impact on the environment; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the : city council ;of the city of Lemon Grove, 

California hereby;: 

SECTION 1. Waives or modifies the following Design Standards in accordance with Section

16. 12. 280: 

1. Section 16. 12. 220B ( Minimum Lot Area of 6, 000 sq. ft.) to allow 84 condominium units

with associated common areas. 

2. Section 16. 12. 220D ( Minimum Lot Width and Depth of 60 feet by 90 feet) to allow 84

condominium units defined as the interior of the units constructed consistent with

PDP14- 0002. 

SECTION 2. Approves Tentative Map TM0060 in association with Planned Development Permit

PDP14- 0002 and the grading, site, landscape, and architectural plans dated received October

141 2014, December 17, 2014 and December 18, 2014 ( incorporated herein by reference as

Exhibit A), except as noted herein. This approval authorizes the subdivision of 6 parcels and

vacated public right-of-way into 84 condominium units and associated common areas on a site

located at 3515 olive Street, Lemon Grove, California. Except as amended, the approval of this

project shall be subject to the following conditions: 

A. PRIOR TO RECORDATION OF A FINAL MAP: 

1. The subdivider shall execute an Subdivision Improvement Agreement and a Subdivision

Improvement Security in accordance with Section 16. 12. 200. A cost estimate for all of

the proposed grading, drainage, street improvements, landscaping, and retaining wall

work proposed within the private property shall be submitted with the grading and

improvement plans. A separate cost estimate shall be submitted for work proposed

within the public right-of-way. Performance agreements and security equal to the

approved cost estimates shall be posted for all the private and public improvements. 

Templates for these agreements are available from the City. 

2. Submit improvement plans and enter into a secured agreement ( see Item A. 1 above) for

public street improvements on Olive Street to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The



Attachment D

proposed improvements should align with the existing curb, gutter and sidewalk

improvements to the north of the project. The proposed improvements shall include

curb, gutter, sidewalk and AC pavement improvements on olive Street to the satisfaction

of the city Engineer. 

3. Submit an agreement not to oppose the formation of a future utility undergrounding

district to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

4. All existing survey monuments, including any benchmarks), within the boundaries of the

project shall be shown on the plans. If disturbed, a licensed land surveyor shall restore

them after completion of the work. A corner Record or Record of Survey shall be filed
with the San Diego county Recorder as necessary. A copy of the filed documents shall
be given to the city of Lemon Grove Engineering Department as soon as they have

been filed with the County. 

5. A Right-of-way Permit shall be obtained from the Engineering Department for all work

within the public right- of-way. 

5. The applicant shall submit record drawings ( as- builts) and engineering documentation

for all public and private improvements to the satisfaction of the city Engineer. 

7. Submit the street improvement and grading plans to Helix water District for review and

signature. 

8. A final soils engineering report shall be submitted for the Engineering Department' s

review following grading activities but prior to final inspection for grading permits. The

report shall address, at a minimum, items as stated in Municipal Code Section

18. 08. 830. 

9. The project shall be subject to inclusion into the Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District
which includes an annual assessment. 

10. Prior to the issuance of a building permit a change of use application must be filed with

the Lemon Grove Sanitation District. Sewer service and capacity fees will also be

required prior to the issuance of building permits. 

11. Per ordinance 372 a Uniform Transportation Mitigation Fee must be paid at the time of

building permit issuance ( currently $ 2, 254. 00). The fee is subject to annual increases

and the actual fee will be calculated at the time of payment. 

12. Prior to the issuance of occupancy for the structures the applicant shall submit a fair - 

share contribution for the future improvements to the intersection of olive Street and

Broadway and to the intersection of Olive Street and Lemon Avenue to the satisfaction

of the city Engineer. 

13. The subdivider shall provide easements for all proposed sewer facilities as required by
the Lemon Grove Sanitation District. The location of the proposed sewer facilities shall

be as required by the Lemon Grove Sanitation District. 

14. A maintenance agreement for the private sewer shall be executed to the satisfaction of

the city Engineer. 

15. All grading permit fees and deposits shall be paid and all actions necessary preceding

the issuance of the grading permit shall be completed. 

10. The subdivider shall grant to the appropriate agency by recorded documents all required
easements, specifically all on- site water main easements that serve fire hydrants, or

furnish a letter from said agency that none are required. 



Attachment D

1 7. The design and area of all lots and the design of the final map shall be in substantial

conformance to that shown on the approved tentative map to the satisfaction of the

Development Services Director. 

18. The final map shall include the entire area shown on the tentative map and shall not be
filed as units. Lot numbering and design on the final map shall be in substantial

conformance to that shown on the approved tentative map. 

19. The final map shall indicate that this project is a condominium development for eighty
four ( 84) dwelling units. 

20. The map shall show street right- of-way dedicated to the City consistent with the

approved Tentative Map. 

21. The map shall show vacation of public right- of-way consistent with Government Code
Section 66434 ( g). 

22. The subdivider shall comply with section 66436 of the Government Code by furnishing to
the City Engineer a certification from each public utility and each public entity owning

easements within the proposed subdivision stating that: a) they have received from the
developer a copy of the proposed final map; b) they object to/do not object to the filing of
the map without their signature; c) in the case of a street dedication affected by their
existing easement, they will sign a " subordination certification" or " joint -use certificate" 

on the map when required by the governing body. In addition, the subdivider shall

furnish proof to the satisfaction of the City Engineer that no new encumbrances have
been created that would subordinate the City' s interest over areas to be dedicated for

public road purposes since submittal of the tentative map. 

23. The subdivider shall submit a title report for the property no more than 60 days in

advance of the recordation of the Final Condominium Map to the City Engineer for
review. The final map shall identify any and all easements indicated within the Title
Report. 

24. All plans and technical studies required to be submitted to Engineering Department for

review and approval shall be prepared by a California Registered Professional Engineer

or applicable utility provider. 

26. For any work within the public right-of-way, the subdivider shall secure an encroachment
permit to work within the City right- of-way and place a special deposit with the City to
ensure that any damage to the existing roadway or other public improvements is

repaired in a timely manner. 

26. All domestic water supplied for this subdivision shall come from the Helix water District. 

27. All buildings constructed in this subdivision shall be connected to the public sewer

system of the Lemon Grove Sanitation District. 

28. The subdivider shall provide the City Engineer with two reproducible Mylar copies of the
final map for recordation. 

29. The subdivider shall provide proof satisfactory to the director of public health that there
exists an adequate potable water supply available to each lot or parcel, and that the

subdivider install or agree to install water supply pipes of a minimum six inches in
diameter, provided that the City Engineer may require such other diameter of water

supply pipe as may be recommended by Helix water District. 



Attachment D

30. The subdivider shall provide the City Engineer with letters from the serving utility

companies stating that arrangements satisfactory to the utility have been made to serve
all parcels created. No letter will be required from the Pacific Bell Telephone Company. 

31. Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions ( CC& Rs) shall be submitted to the City for

review and shall be written to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director and

the City Engineer. The CC& Rs shall include the requirements identified by the Water

Quality Report and Drainage Study ( addressing all requirements of the Regional Water

Quality Control Board for a priority project) to be approved for this project to the

satisfaction of the Water Quality Program Coordinator, City Engineer, and Development

Services Director and shall be recorded concurrent with the final map and shall include

but not limited to the following: 

a. Best Management Practices ( BMP' s) and a Drainage Maintenance Agreement. The

maintenance and the preservation of the drainage facilities shall be included in the

CC& Rs. The Developer, Current and Future Property Owners shall adhere to the

recommendations of the SUSMP and CC& Rs approved for this project. 

b. On- going maintenance of landscaping and irrigation ( private and within public right- 

of-way) of slopes, parkways, open space and any landscaped areas as illustrated on
the PDP 1 4- 0002 Exhibit "A". 

c. A specific Exhibit " A" for the CC& Rs shall be generated and attached and recorded

with the CC& Rs and shall clearly identify areas to be operated, maintained and

managed by the HOA. 

d. Immediate removal of graffiti and any other type of offensive debris is required. 

e. Tandem spaces shall be assigned to one residential unit. 

f. All landscaping shall be well maintained in a healthy growing condition at all times in
substantially the same condition as approved in accordance with the approved site

and landscape plans (private and within public right- of-way as shown on Exhibit A). 

g. Any bioretention areas, underground drainage facilities, and outlet structures

identified in the Storm Water Management Plan ( SWIVIP) and Hydro Modification

Plan ( HMP) shall be well maintained at all times. Any modifications to the

bioretention areas shall require modifications to the SWMP and HMP and review and

approval by the city Engineer. 

h. Requirements to maintain the drainage facilities and any access easements ( where

they occur) on the property. 

i. All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light downward, 

away from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises. 

j. The property shall comply with all performance standards relating to the generation
of noise, emissions, glare, dust, and odor. 

k. Identify and implement the BMP' s identified in a Standard Urban Stormwater

Mitigation Plan ( SUSMP) prepared for this project and state that the Developer, 

Current and Future Property Owners shall comply with the recommendations of the

SUSMP prepared for this project to the satisfaction of the Water Quality Program

Coordinator and the City Engineer. 

I. Funding of the long term maintenance of all facilities required by the SUSMP shall be
included in the annual HOA budget. 



Attachment D

m. . Placement of trash and recycling receptacles for pick- up by EDCO shall be on the

alley driveway and not within olive Street. 

n. Rooftop mechanical equipment shall be screened so that it shall not be seen from

public rights of way. 

o. The use of barbed wire or razor ribbon on any fences, gates, or walls is prohibited. 

p. ongoing maintenance of the onsite private sewer is required. 

q. The CC& Rs shall clearly establish the responsibilities of the individual home owners

and the HOA with regard to the continuing maintenance and preservation of the

project. 

r. The CC& Rs shall specifically limit the number of dwelling units to eighty four ( 84) on

the site. 

s. The CC& Rs shall give the city the right but not the duty to enter the premises to do
maintenance and levy assessments if the home owners fail or refuse to maintain said
facilities, and shall forbid amendments to the CC& Rs without express written consent

of the city. 

t. common areas shall be well maintained at all times. 

u. Street trees along the cul- de- sac roadway shall be maintained so as not to obstruct

the ability of fire apparatus access and fire department aerial operations. 

B PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF ANY GRADING AND IMPROVEMENT PERMIT: 

1 All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans dated

received October 15, 2014, December 17, 2014 and December 18, 2014 except as

noted herein, shall be located substantially where they are shown and shall be

constructed in accordance with applicable Lemon Grove City codes. 

2,, Execute a performance bond for all grading activities to the satisfaction of the city
Engineer. 

3 Execute a performance bond for all public improvements to the satisfaction of the City
Engineer. If the improvement plans show a need to excavate in any public road right- of- 
way, the developer shall place a cash deposit with the City Engineer to insure any

damage to the existing roadway or other public improvements are repaired in a timely
manner. 

4. o Submit and obtain approval of a Water Quality Technical Report and Drainage Study to
address all current requirements of the San Diego Regional Water Quality control Board
Standard Urban Stormwater Mitigation Plan and the Hydro Modification Plan) for a

priority development project and to the satisfaction of the Water Quality Program

Coordinator and the city Engineer. The SUSMP and HMP shall be completed and

approved prior to the issuance of any permits. 

5.. The subdivider shall submit grading plans and a grading permit application to the City
Engineer. Grading plans shall be prepared in accordance with the Lemon Grove

Municipal Code and by a registered civil engineer. The grading plan shall be reviewed

and approved before or concurrently with the approval of the improvement plans. The

grading plan shall show existing and proposed on- site improvements including but not

limited to paving, grading, utilities, retaining walls, and drainage features. The plan must

be approved and secured prior to building permitting. All necessary measures for

compliance with the approved Water Quality Technical Report and Drainage Study shall

22- 



Attachment D

be implemented with the design of the grading. The developer shall submit an erosion

and sediment control plan illustrating Construction Best Management Practices ( BMPs). 

5. Submit a preliminary geotechnical report consistent with Municipal Code Section

18. 08. 120. 

7. Obtain a demolition permit for the demolition of any structures on the site. 

8. obtain an encroachment permit for the installation of private facilities and/ or for grading
work in/ or adjacent to the public right-of-way. 

9. All necessary measures for prevention of storm water pollution and hazardous material

run- off to the public storm drain system from the proposed development shall be

implemented with the design of the grading. A private storm water treatment

maintenance agreement shall be executed. 

10. A public improvement plan shall be submitted ( improvement plan check) showing all of

the proposed and existing improvements and existing sewer rehabilitation improvements
within the public right-of-way and public easements. The plan shall be prepared in

accordance with the City' s standard requirements by a Registered civil Engineer. The

subdivider shall submit record drawings ( as- builts) and engineering documentation for all
public improvements to the City to the satisfaction of the City Engineer ( e. g., all streets, 

a new cured - in- place pipe liner ( CIPPL) in the portion of existing VCP sewer pipe

underlying the proposed garage, access and drainage easements, culverts, drainage

structures and drainage channels). Street alignments and grades, including the change
of any existing or proposed street alignment and grade, shall be as required by the City
Engineer. 

11. The applicant shall submit sewer lateral plans with the improvement plans. These sewer

lateral plans shall be submitted in digital format and as paper copies to the satisfaction of

the city Engineer. 

12. Sewer and water lines shall not be laid in the same trench in any part of this subdivision. 

13. A private Sewer Maintenance agreement shall be executed for the future repair and

rehabilitation of the proposed private sewers. The City will provide the template for the

agreement. 

14. A letter of permission to grade will be required from owners of adjacent property owners
where work is proposed. The letter(s) must acknowledge the work to be done, the date

of the plan of work for which the letter is intended to cover, and be signed with notary
attached. 

15. An agreement not -to -oppose the formation of a future utility undergrounding district will

be required to be submitted and recorded. 

15. All new utility distribution facilities, including cable television lines, within the boundaries

of any new subdivision or within any half street abutting a new subdivision shall be

placed underground. The subdivider shall coordinate with the necessary cable television
operators for the installation of such facilities. Transformers, terminal boxes, meter

cabinets, pedestals, concealed ducts, and other facilities necessarily appurtenant to

such underground utilities and street lighting systems may be placed above ground

unless directed otherwise by the City Engineer. All proposed structures on the subject

property shall connect to the utility systems via underground systems. 

17. The subdivider shall construct or shall cause to be constructed, at his/ her cost, a street

lighting system conforming to city standards. 



Attachment D

18. Sight distance requirements at all intersections shall conform to the intersectional sight

distance criteria as provided to the American Association of State Highway officials in

the publication " Geometric Design for Local Roads and Streets 1971" or as revised. 

19. All public streets curb return radii shall be a minimum radius acceptable to the City of

Lemon Grove Fire chief and City Engineer. 

20. The improvement plans shall include a detail of the curb outlet to the satisfaction of the

City Engineer. 

21. Obtain sewer permits and pay capacity fees for 84 units. 

22. The subdivider shall prepare construction plans and construct drainage facilities in

accordance with the Drainage and Hydrology Study prepared for the project and to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

23. Building permits shall be submitted with the grading plans for retaining walls where

required. 

24. Submit a truck routing plan for grading activities concurrent with the submittal of the

grading plan and grading permit application if required by the City Engineer. 

25. The developer/ owner shall submit an erosion control plan and irrigation plan with a

sediment control plan to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

26. A deposit for the initial operation costs expended by the Lighting District for the subject

property shall be submitted until the condominium lots are placed on the Tax Assessor' s
yearly statement. 

27. As -built drawings shall be submitted to SDG& E to energize all of the required street

lights. 

28. A formal written request to add street lights to the Lemon Grove Lighting District shall be
submitted to the city of Lemon Grove Lighting District prior to permanent energizing. 

Cy DURING GRADING ACTIVITIES AND PRIOR TO FINAL GRADING PERMIT

APPROVAL: 

1. All property corners of the parcel of the lot shall be monumented with three- fourths (. 75) 
inch [ interior diameter] iron pipe with lead plug and copper identification disks at least 18
inches long and to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director. Alternatively, 
applicant may enter into a secured agreement to install monumentation prior to final map
recordation or occupancy. 

2. The drainage structures identified in an approved Storm Water Management Plan

SWMP) and Hydro Modification Plan ( HMP) shall be installed. Any modifications to the
bioretention areas shall require modifications to the SWMP and HMP and review and

approval by the City Engineer. 

3. A final soils engineering report shall be submitted for the Engineering Department' s

review. In addition to verifying the preliminary soils report, the final soils report shall

address the adequacy of the building pads, the maximum allowable soil bearing
pressure and the required pavement structural sections for the proposed streets, the

parking areas, and the driveways. 

4. The structural pavement section for the garage located on the subject property shall be

based on the soils report prepared by a Geotechnical Engineer to the satisfaction of the

City Engineer. 

24_ 



Attachment D

5. The development and preparation of the site shall conform to the soils and geotechnical

reports submitted to the city. 

6. The installation of gas, electric, sewer, and water lines and any other below surface

utilities is required to take place before the installation of any concrete curbs, gutters, 

sidewalks, and surfacing of the streets ( including repair or replacement). 

7. Metallic identification tape shall be placed between the bottom layer of the finished

surface and the top of all irrigation lines in the public right- of-way. 

8. The developer/ owner shall be required to repair and/ or replace any damaged public

improvements fronting the project. 

9. Provide the City with a final drainage/ hydrology report/ letter indicating that the site

design is in accordance with the report and the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination

System ( NPDES) permit. 

10. The contractor/ permittee conducting any earth moving operation shall be responsible for
controlling dust created by its grading operation or activities at all times. 

11. A pad certification and compaction report shall be submitted to the City for review and
approval prior to applicant request for final inspection on the grading permit. Provide the

City with, upon completion of the grading, a compaction report from the geotechnical firm

and a letter from a licensed civil engineer that the grading and elevations of the pad

were done in accordance with the approved grading plans and prior to the issuance of

building plans. 

12. Prior to final inspection a report shall be prepared summarizing the results of any

Department of Environmental Health programs required as a part of the development of

this project and submitted to the Development Services Director. 

Dar PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION

AUTHORIZED BY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP14- 0002: 

1. All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans dated

October 15, 2014, December 17, 2014 and December 18, 2014 except as noted herein, 

shall be located substantially where they are shown and shall be constructed in

accordance with applicable Lemon Grove city codes

2. The CC& Rs shall be recorded. 

3. Each dwelling unit of the proposed subdivision shall be connected to a sewer of the

Lemon Grove Sanitation District. 

4. certification that the as -built grading is consistent with Municipal Code Section

18. 08. 380 shall be submitted. 

5. The project shall comply with all applicable provisions of the California Fire Code and the
California Building code. 

6. Permanent commercial/ industrial three- dimensional street numbers, minimum 12 inches

in height with a
1/

2 inch stroke, shall be provided on the address side of the building at

the highest point and furthest projection of the structure. The address shall be visible

form the street and shall not be obstructed in any manner. 

7. Address numbers and suite numbers are required to be installed or painted on the rear
of access doors to multiple suite facilities. Numbers or letters shall be a minimum of four

4) inches in height and placed on a contrasting background. 



Attachment D

8. Knox emergency access key box is required at each building, with specific mounting
locations approved by Heartland Fire & Rescue. Recessed mount key boxes are

required. Premise keys for all buildings and areas shall be marked and placed in the

box prior to final inspection to ensure emergency access. The building owner/ occupants
shall provide replacement keys whenever locks are changed. 

9. A fire department operational permit is required for certain specific operations regulated

by the 2013 California Fire code. The permit is issued after application has been made
to Heartland Fire & Rescue and full compliance of the requirements for the operation has
been adhered to. An annual fee is charged to the applicant for review and inspection of
such permits on an annual basis. Some permits require additional inspections and

permit compliance that may require additional fees to be paid semi- annually. 

10. Provide plans on AutoCAD ( any release) for pre -fire planning use by fire department. 
Information shall include locations of all exits, stairwells and roof access. Also, gas, 

electrical, water, fire sprinkler and standpipe valves and shutoffs, and elevator and

electrical equipment rooms, fire alarm panels, remote annunciators and RTU/ HVAC
detectors. 

11. Street trees along the cul- de- sac roadway shall not obstruct the ability of fire apparatus
access and fire department aerial operations. Tree height and type should be

considered in the ultimate landscape design. 

12. ongoing maintenance of the landscape area including street trees shall be included in

the OCR' s as an HOA maintenance requirement. 

13. The access roadway identified as shared access north of the project shall be considered
a fire lane. 

14. The private on- site fire protection mains and appurtenances ( Backflow Prevention, FDC, 
PIV etc.) shall be reviewed and approved by the fire department prior to installation. 

15. Heartland Fire & Rescue Fees will be determined at time of plan review, inspection, or

permit application. 

15. All fire apparatus access roadways must be maintained unobstructed and driveable by
fire apparatus throughout the construction process. Access roadways shall be capable

of holding an imposed load of 75, 000 pounds including in adverse weather conditions. 
17. Grades for driveway and fire apparatus access roads shall not exceed 15 percent. Fire

Department approval and additional conditions are required for grades up to 20 percent

maximum. Angle of approach and departure for driveways shall not exceed 7 degrees. 

18. The development and each phase thereof shall have a minimum of 2 -points of vehicular
access for fire and emergency equipment and for routes of safe egress of citizens

regardless of the cul- de- sac length and shall be required as directed by Heartland Fire & 
Rescue. 

19. Fire lane designations shall be required for all fire access roadways as determined by
Heartland Fire & Rescue. Posted signs which state " FIRE LANE, NO PARKING" shall

be installed every 50 feet. curbs shall be painted red and stenciled with white letters

indicating the same on the face and top of any curb as directed by Heartland Fire & 
Rescue. All Fire lanes shall be marked and identified prior to Certificate of Occupancy. 

20. Fire Apparatus Access roads ( all roads in project) shall be usable ( paved), accessible

and fire hydrant( s) shall be capable of flowing required GPM and shall be

tested/ accepted by Fire Dept. prior to dropping any lumber for construction. 

26_ 



Attachment D

21 . Loading zones are required adjacent to loading doors and shall be designated on the

Development Site or Plot Plan and shall be marked on the appropriate ground surface. 

Loading zones shall not interfere with required Fire Lanes or emergency egress

capabilities. 

22. Roadway design features ( speed humps, bumps, speed control dips, etc.) which may
interfere or delay emergency apparatus responses shall not be installed or allowed to

remain on the emergency access roadways. 

23. Any gate or barrier across a fire access roadway, whether manual or automatic, must

meet the Heartland Fire & Rescue requirements and have specific plans and permits

approved prior to installation. Gates serving multi -family, assembly, educational, 

hazardous, institutional, or storage structures must be automatic. Knox brand key - 
operated electric key switch keyed to Heartland Fire & rescue specification are required. 

The Knox switch shall override all gate functions and open the gate. other access

control systems such as opticom, siren, etc. shall be permitted with the approval of

Heartland Fire & Rescue. 

24. The required fire flow shall be 3, 800 GPM for 3 -hour duration at 20 PSI residual

operating pressure. Documentation is required from the Water Purveyor verifying that

the system is capable of meeting the required fire flow prior to building permit issuance. 
If the system is not capable of meeting the required fire flow documentation shall be

provided showing financial arrangements have been made and water system

improvement plans have been submitted and approved by Heartland Fire & Rescue and

the water purveyor to upgrade the existing system prior to release of building permits. 

Indicate on the site all existing and proposed fire hydrants that will be serving the

proposed project. 

25. Water improvement plans shall be approved by Heartland Fire & Rescue prior to

recordation. The Developer shall furnish Heartland Fire & Rescue with three ( 3) copies

of the water improvement plans designed by a Registered Engineer and/ or Licensed

Contractor. on-site private fire service mains shall have a minimum of eight ( 8) inch

water mains with six ( 6) inch laterals and risers. Larger pipes maybe required to meet

required fire flow requirements. Fire hydrants shall provide one 4" port and 2- 2 1/
2 ports

and must be an approved fire hydrant type. 

26. The existing fire hydrant system may be insufficient to provide the required fire flow. 

This system would be required to be upgraded to meet the required fire flow as identified

above. Provide the required fire flow verification from Helix Water District verifying the

available fire flow. 

27. Prior to combustibles being brought to the site, the developer shall provide written

certification from the water purveyor, dated within the last thirty days, that: 

a. All public fire hydrants required of the project have been installed, tested, and

approved by the water Purveyor, and

b. Are permanently connected to the public water main system, and

c. Are capable of supplying the required fire flow as required by Heartland Fire & 

Rescue. 

28. Fire hydrants shall be painted per Heartland Fire & Rescue and the local water purveyor

standards and be maintained free of obstructions. Blue reflective raised pavement

markers shall be installed on the pavement at approved locations marking each fire

hydrant. 



Attachment D

29. Public and private water utility mains must provide the level of reliability/ redundancy
determined necessary by Heartland Fire & Rescue and the local Water Purveyor

Engineer. 

30. If any fire hydrant is taken " OUT OF SERVICE" — Heartland Fire & Rescue shall be

notified immediately and the hydrant marked, bagged, or otherwise identified as OUT OF

SERVICE as directed by the Fire Marshal. 

31. Prior to Fire Department clearance for occupancy, an automatic fire sprinkler system

shall be installed. The system shall comply with NFPA # 13 Standard for Automatic Fire

Sprinkler Systems. Three sets of plans, hydraulic calculations, and material

specification' s sheets for all equipment used in the system shall be submitted by a State
of California Licensed C- 16 Contractor for review, approval, and permits issued prior to

commencing work. 

32. A class one standpipe system is required. A State of California Licensed C- 16

Contractor shall submit three ( 3) sets of pians, specifications, and hydraulic calculations

to the Fire Department for review, approval, and permits. 

33. Prior to Fire Department clearance for occupancy, and automatic fire alarm system shall

be installed. The system shall comply with NFPA # 72 Standard for Fire Alarm Systems. 

Three sets of plans, material specification' s sheets for all equipment used in the system

and California State

34. Fire Marshal listings shall be submitted by a State of California Licensed C- 7 and or 10
Contractor for review, approval, and permits issued prior to commencing work. 

35. Prior to final inspection or occupancy, hand portable fire extinguishers are required to be

installed as directed by Heartland Fire & Rescue Fire Prevention staff. The size, 

location, and markings shall be illustrated on the floor plan of the construction

documents. Prior to installation the client is directed to request a fire inspection to

confirm the locations of the fire extinguishers due to field changes with business systems

that could conflict with the construction documents. 

E. PRIOR TO FINAL APPROVAL OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION

AUTHORIZED BY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP14- 0002: 

1. All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans Exhibit A

except as noted herein, shall be located substantially where they are shown and shall be
constructed in accordance with applicable Lemon Grove City Codes

2. construct the public improvements along Olive Street and the cul- de- sac as proposed in
the Improvement and Landscape Plans to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

3. Provide the City with, upon completion of the paving, a letter from the geotechnical firm

or a licensed civil engineer that the structural pavement section was constructed in

accordance with the geotechnical report prior to the issuance of final occupancy. 

4. All fire access gates shall be provided with approved key operating switches and traffic
control strobe activating sensors. 

5. Install the proposed street lights ( if required) to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

Contact SDG& E for installation and billing requirements. 

6. Install and maintain all improvements proposed in the approved Hydro Modification Plan. 

Fa UPON ESTABLISHMENT OF USE IN RELIANCE WITH TENTATIVE MAP: 

1. Comply with all of the conditions of this resolution and the requirements of PDP14- 0002. 

28- 



Attachment D

2. The property owner, or its successors and assigns shall be responsible for the

maintenance, repair, or reconstruction of all irrigation and landscaping improvements

and stamped and stained concrete sidewalks installed within the public right-of-way. 

Sprinkler heads shall be adjusted so as to prevent overspray upon the public sidewalk or
the street. The proposed sprinkler heads shall be installed behind the sidewalk, and the

irrigation mainline upon private property only, as required by the City. The property

owner or, its successors or assigns, shall remove and relocate all irrigation or concrete

items from the public right- of- way at no cost to the City, and within a reasonable time

frame upon a written notification by the City Engineer. 

3. The proposed onsite sewer shall be privately owned and maintained. 

4. Proper drainage shall be maintained throughout this subdivision as to prevent ponding

and/ or storage of surface water and shall be in compliance with the National Pollutant

Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) permit to the satisfaction of the city Engineer. 

5. The CC& Rs reviewed and accepted by the City shall be enforced at all times. 

G. This approval of this tentative map will expire three years from the date of approval or

such longer period as may be extended by State Law. The final map or maps

conforming to this conditionally approved tentative map shall be filed with the City
Council in time so that said council may approve the map before this approval expires; 
unless prior to that date, the Planning Commission or city Council subsequently grants a
one- year time extension for obtaining such approval of said final map or maps as

provided by the city Subdivision ordinance. 

H The terms and conditions of the Tentative Map shall be binding upon the permittee and
all persons, firms, and corporations having an interest in the property subject to this

Tentative Map and the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of each

of them, including municipal corporations, public agencies, and districts. 

11111

11111



Attachment E

RESOLUTION NO.. 2015- 

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE : CITY COUNCIL APPROVING PLANNED

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP14- 0002 AUTHORIZING THE DEVELOPMENT OF AN EIGHTY

FOUR UNIT CONDOMINIUM PROJECT AT 3515 OLIVE STREET, LEMON GROVE, 

CALIFORNIA.: 

WHEREAS, 4Citymark Development, filed a complete application for a Planned

Development Permit PDP14- 0002 and a Tentative Map TM0060 on October 15, 2014, 

December 17, 2014 and December 18, 2014 to authorize a subdivision of 6 parcels into one lot

with eighty four residential condominium units; and

WHEREAS, the proposed site includes six parcels ( APNs 480-043- 17, 187 301 31) 331
37) and the vacation of public right- of-way; and

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration, ND15- 01, of Environmental Impact

regarding Planned Development Permit PDP14- 0002 and Tentative Map TM0060 will be will be
filed subsequent to its adoption and the approval of the proposed project; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove Planning
Commission on December 4, 2014; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission was able to make the required findings pursuant
to Lemon Grove Municipal Code Section 17. 28. 030 ( C) and recommends approval; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed on December 4, 2014 and held by the

Lemon Grove City Council on January 6, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Planned Development Permit PDP14- 0002 is
consistent with the Lemon Grove General Plan and Downtown Village Specific Plan because it

proposes 84 condominium units at a density consistent with the Transit Mixed Use ( TMU 5 & 7) 

Zones of the Downtown Village Specific Plan on an approximate 1. 14 net acre area of land

which requires a minimum 35-45 dwelling units per net acre; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the following Planned Development

Permit findings of fact, as required by Section 17. 28. 030( 0), can be made as follows: 

1. That the development is not detrimental to the public interest, health, safety, or general

welfare. 

a. This City Council finds that the design of the proposed project complies, or will be

made to comply with all of the applicable requirements of the Downtown Village

Specific Plan and Lemon Grove Municipal Code relating to public safety and no such
detriment should occur. 

2. That the development complies with applicable provision of the Zoning ordinance ( Title

17) and/ or deviations that comply with applicable provisions in subsection D of the
Planned Development Permit regulations ( Section 17. 28. 030). 

a. This City Council finds that the proposed project complies with, or conditions have

been included for this project to require it comply with the Downtown Village Specific
Plan and Lemon Grove Municipal Code requirements relating to off-street parking, 
screening, and landscape requirements

3. That the development is consistent with general plan policies and standards and other

No



Attachment E

applicable plans or policies adopted by the City Council. 

a. This City Council finds that the planned development is consistent with the Lemon

Grove General Plan and Downtown Village Specific Plan policies and standards

because the Specific Plan allows condominium development in the form and scale

proposed; and

4. That the development density or intensity does not exceed general plan limitations. 

a. This City Council finds that the planned development is consistent with the Lemon

Grove General Plan and Downtown Village Specific Plan because it proposes 84

condominium units at a density of 73 dwelling units per acre on TMU5 & 7 land use

designation which requires a minimum density of 35- 45 dwelling units per acre; and

5. That the existing infrastructure such as utilities, transportation systems, and

communications networks adequately serve the development or will be upgraded to
efficiently accommodate the additional burdens imposed. 

a. This City Council finds that public improvements proposed in the Main Street

Promenade District allow for safe circulation of pedestrian, bicyclists, and motor

vehicles and improves the general welfare of the community; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the following deviations, waivers, or

modifications as permitted by the Planned Development Permit regulations ( Section

17. 28. 030D) are adequately offset by enhanced improvements and amenities: 

1. A waiver of Downtown Village Specific Plan parking standards and requirements to allow
a deficit of required parking spaces ( approximately 4 percent) and to allow tandem

spaces to count towards the parking requirement. 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered Tentative Map TM0060 including
conceptual grading plans dated associated with Planned Development Permit PDP14- 0002; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the : City Council lof the City of Lemon Grove, 

California hereby': 

SECTION 1. Waive or modify the following Development Standards in accordance with Section

17. 28. 030D ( Deviations): 

1. A waiver of Downtown Village Specific Plan parking standards and requirements to allow
a deficit of required parking spaces ( approximately 4 percent) and to allow tandem

spaces to count towards the parking requirement. 

SECTION 2. Approve Planned Development Permit PDP14- 0002 associated with Tentative Map
TM0060 and the grading, site, landscape, and architectural plans referenced as Exhibit A, 

except as noted herein. This approval authorizes the development of the site located at 3515

Olive Street for an 84 unit condominium development with associated common area. Except as

amended, the approval of this project shall be subject to the following conditions: 

A. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION

AUTHORIZED BY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP14- 6002: 

1. All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans dated

October 15, 2014, December 17, 2014 and December 18, 2014 except as noted herein, 

shall be located substantially where they are shown and shall be constructed in

accordance with applicable Lemon Grove Municipal Code. 

32- 



Attachment E

2. Pay parkland fees, school fees, Helix water District capacity fees, Regional

Transportation congestion Improvement Program ( RTCIP) fees, sewer connection fees, 

and other applicable development fees. 

3. Record the Final ( Condominium) Map for TM0060 unless otherwise determined by the
Development Services Director. 

4. Submit a landscape documentation package in compliance with Chapter 18. 44. The

documentation package shall include a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the

entire project. Provide reference sheets for the grading and landscape erosion control

plans. The plan shall indicate all surface improvements, including but not limited to, the

design and locations of all walls, fences, driveways, walkways, botanical and common

names of all plant materials, number, size and location of all plantings; all irrigation lines

including valves and back-flow devices; and soil amendments. Said landscape plan

shall comply with the requirements of Section 17. 24.050( B) and Chapter 18. 44 of the

Municipal code. The landscape plan shall be in substantial conformance to the

approved landscape concept plan. 

5. The building plans submitted for the proposed condominium units shall include a color

and materials board to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director. 

6. All dwelling units shall comply with the interior noise level requirements of California

Code Title 24. A letter from an acoustical engineer shall be submitted as evidence that

the noise levels have been measured and the building plans have incorporated the

recommendations of the acoustical engineer. 

7. All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light downward, away

from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises. 

8. Vehicular sight distance of all driveway entrances shall be to the satisfaction of the city
Engineer. 

9. Each dwelling unit in the development shall be protected with an approved automatic fire
suppression sprinkler system to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal. 

10. The project shall comply with all conditions established by the Resolution of Approval for
the Tentative Map TM0060. 

11. The project shall comply with all applicable provisions of the California Fire Code and the
California Building code. 

Bo PRIOR TO FINAL APPROVAL OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION

AUTHORIZED BY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP14- 0002: 

1. All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans ( Exhibit A) 

except as noted herein, shall be located substantially where they are shown and shall be
constructed in accordance with applicable Lemon Grove City Codes. 

2. The color pallete shall be consistent with the conceptual drawing on the approved plans
dated October 15, 2014, December 17, 2014 and December 18, 2014 and the color and

materials board to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director. 

3. Artistic panels will be designed and illustrated for the parking garage ventilation grills as
noted on the Vilest Architectural Elevation to the satisfaction of the Development

Services Director. 

33



Attachment E

Ca UPON ESTABLISHMENT OF USE IN RELIANCE OF THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
PERMIT: 

1. Comply with all of the Conditions of this resolution and the requirements of TM0060, as

applicable. 

2. CC& Rs shall be enforced at all times. 

3. All landscaping shall be well maintained and adequately watered at all times. The

landscaping located on the subject property shall be maintained in a healthy and

growing condition at all times. All on- site & off-site landscaped areas shall be planted

and irrigated by a permanent irrigation system. 

4. The proposed facility shall fully comply with the requirements of the California Fire Code
to the satisfaction of the Fire Chief. 

5. All screening fences, and walls on the subject property shall be maintained in good

condition at all times. 

6. All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light downward, away
from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises. 

7. All graffiti shall be removed or painted over with a paint that closely matches the color of
the exterior of the building within 48 hours of the discovery of the graffiti. 

8. Any deviations proposed from the approved plans relating to the construction of facilities
and maintenance of improvements shall substantially conform to the approved plans

Exhibit A) to the satisfaction of the Development Services Department. 

D,
m This approval of this Planned Development Permit will expire three years from the date

of approval or such longer period as may be extended by State Law ( the Planned

Development Permit will be extended automatically with any extensions required of

Tentative Map TM0060 in accordance with State Law). 

E. The terms and conditions of the Planned Development Permit shall be binding upon the
permittee and all persons, firms, and corporations having an interest in the property
subject to this Planned Development Permit and the heirs, executors, administrators, 

successors, and assigns of each of them, including municipal corporations, public

agencies, and districts. 

11111

11111

no



Attachment F

ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST FORM

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT NO. ND15-01

I. Project Title: Citymark Lemon Grove PDP140- 002 and TM0050

2. Lead Agency Name and Address: City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

3. Contact Person and Phone Number: Carol Dick, Development Services Director

519) 825- 3805

4. Project Location: Six parcels and a portion of City right- of-way ( 1. 14 net acres) located

at 3515 olive Street, Lemon Grove, CA 91945. Assessor' s Parcel Number: 480- 043- 

171 181 301 311 331 37, and public right-of-way ( to be vacated). 

5. Project Sponsor' s Name and Address: Russ Haley, Citymark Development, 3818

Park Boulevard, San Diego, CA 92103. Phone: ( 519) 235- 4591. 

5. General Plan Designation: The subject properties are designated as Transit Mixed

Use 5 and 7 in the Downtown Village Specific Plan ( DVSP). 

7. Zoning: The subject properties are located in the Transit Mixed Use 5 and 7 zones of

the Downtown Village Specific Plan ( DVSP). 

8. Description of the Project: The proposed project is a request for a Planned

Development Permit ( PDP14- 0002) and Tentative Map JM0050) to authorize the

demolition of existing structures and to construct an 84 residential unit condominium

development. The project site consists of parcels that contain vacant structures that

were previously occupied by Culligan Water Softening, a portion of City right- of-way to

be vacated and City owned vacant parcels. The site contains slopes created as a part of

the cul- de- sac driveway and there is no vegetation. The physical improvements for the

project include removal of the existing warehouse structures, demolition of the paved

areas on- site, excavation and grading, construction of retaining walls, public street

dedication and improvements, construction of the residential structure and vehicle

parking areas, hardscape, landscape and irrigation, lighting, and signage. 

9. Surrounding Land Uses and Setting: The project site is located on a city block

bounded on the north side by North Avenue; on the south side by Broadway; on the east

side by the Main Street Promenade and on the west side by Olive Street. This area is a

developed urban commercial area near a main entry to the City of Lemon Grove from

SR94 and located within the Downtown Village Specific Plan. The existing surrounding

land uses consist of heavy commercial uses, a senior housing and apartment

development, retail stores, heavy commercial businesses, and a driveway with a cul- de- 
sac. The Lemon Grove Trolley Depot serving the Orange Line is within 50 feet of the

project site. 

10. other public agencies whose approval is required ( e. g. permits, financing
approval, or participation agreement): Department of Fish & Game, FAA Notice, 

County of San Diego Department of Environmental Health. 



Attachment F

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED: 

The environmental factors highlighted below would be potentially affected by this project, 

involving at least one impact that is a " Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the

checklist on the following pages. 

Aesthetics x Hazards & Hazardous x Public Services

Materials

Agricultural Resources x Hydrology/ Water Qual
T 

ity x Recreation

Air Quality I J Land Use/ Planning il x I Transportation/ Traffic

Biological Resources I Mineral Resources I  Utilities/Service Systems

Cultural Resources x Noise Mandatory Findings of

6e'ology/ Soils
Significance

Population/ Housing

DETERMINATION: ( To be completed by the Lead Agency) 

On the basis of this initial evaluation: 

find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, 
and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

X I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the

environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the

project have been made by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED

NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment and an
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 

I find that the proposed project MAY have a " potential significant impact" or " potentially
significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but a least one effect ( 1) has

been adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, 
and ( 2) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as

described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, 

but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addresses. 

find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the

environment, because all potentially significant effects ( a) have been analyzed in and

earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards and ( b) have
been avoided or mitigated to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including
revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing
further is required. 



Attachment F

On file December 3, 

Signature Date

Carol Dick, Development Services Director Citv of Lemon Grove

Printed Name

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

1. A brief explanation is required for all answers except " No Impact" answers that are

adequately supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses
following each question. A " No Impact" answer is adequately supported if the

referenced information sources show that the impact simply does not apply to projects

like the one involved ( e. g. the project falls outside a fault rupture zone). A " No Impact" 

answer should be explained where it is based on the project -specific factors as well as

general standards ( e. g. the project will not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, 

based on a project. 

2, All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as
on --site, cumulative as well as project level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as

well as operational impacts. 

3w, Once the lead agency has determined that a particularly physical impact may occur, 

then the checklist answers must indicated whether the impact is potentially significant, 
less than significant with mitigation, or less than significant. " Potentially Significant

Impact" is appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If

there are one or more " Potentially Significant Impact" entries when the determination is

made, an EIR is required. 

4. " Negative Declaration: Potentially Significant Unless Mitigation Incorporated" applies

where the incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from " Potentially
Significant Impact" to a " Less Significant Impact". The lead agency musty describe the
mitigation measures, and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less than

significant level ( mitigation measures from Section 17, " Earlier Analysis", may be cross- 
referenced). 

5. Earlier analysis may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR or other CEQA

process, and effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative

declaration. Section 15063 ( c) ( 3) ( d). In this case, a brief discussion should identify
the following: 

a) Earlier Analysis used. Identify and state where they are available for review. 
b) Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above

checklist were within the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier

document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and state whether such

effect were addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis. 
c) Mitigation Measures. For effects that are " Less than Significant with

Mitigation Measures Incorporated" describe the mitigation measures which were

incorporated or refined from the earlier document and extent to which they
address site-specific conditions for the project. 

6. Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information

sources for potential impacts ( e. g. general plans, zoning ordinances, etc.). Reference

M



Attachment F

to a previously prepared or outside document should where appropriate, include a

reference to the page or pages where the statement is substantiated. 

7. Supporting Information Sources: a source list should be attached and other sources use

d or individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion. 

8.. This is only a suggested form and lead agencies are free to use different formats: 

however, lead agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that

relevant to the project' s environmental effects in whatever format is selected. 

9. The analysis of each issue should identify: ( a) the significance criteria or threshold used

to evaluate each question; and ( b) the mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the

impact to less than significance. 

ISSUES AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION

I " AESTHETICS. Would the Project: 

a Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? 

b Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to trees, rock

outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic? 

C) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its

surroundings? 

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare, which would adversely affect day or

nighttime views in the area? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less, than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The site is located in a developed urbanized area. The subject property is not located in or near
a scenic vista or scenic highway. The project includes the demolition of existing structures and
the construction of an 84 residential condominium unit development. The development will

introduce additional lighting within the urban neighborhood. All exterior lighting shall conform to
the California Building Code Title 24 requirements and city ordinances. The project will be

compatible with the surrounding mixed use development. 
Source: 1, 2, 4, 5, S

2. AGRICULTURE RESOURCES: In determining whether impacts to agricultural

resources are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California
Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model ( 1997) prepared by the

California Department of Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts
on agriculture and farmland. Would the project: 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland or Farmland of Statewide Importance

Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and

Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency to non- agricultural use? 
b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract? 
C) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, 

could result in conversion of Farmland to non- agricultural use? 



Attachment F

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

The project is located within a developed urban commercial area. The property is not located in
an area used for agricultural purposes and no such impacts will occur. 
Source: 1, 2, 4, 5, 6

3. AIR QUALITY: Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable
air quality management or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the

following determinations. Would the project: 

a) conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan? 
b} Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air

quality violation? 
C) Results in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the

project region is non -attainment under any applicable federal or state ambient air quality
standard ( including releasing emissions, which exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone

precursors? 

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project is an urban infill residential project consisting of 84 residential units. The project is

located approximately 509 -feet south of State Route 94 and the prevailing winds are from the
southwest. The project is upwind of SR94 and the main city entry intersection. outdoor spaces

include individual unit balconies and a landscaped rooftop terrace. The individual balconies are

located on the south, west, and east sides of the structure and the major open space serving

the project occurs on the rooftop The project includes air conditioning/ heating and operable
windows. Routine maintenance of the filters will be accomplished by residents or management
personnel. 

The project includes site preparation involving excavation for utilities and foundations. Dust

generation during site preparation and construction activities is required to be controlled and
implemented by the contractor consistent with the Air Quality District regulations. Standard

conditions of approval will be included in the resolution of approval. 

The Master Environmental Impact Report ( MEIR) for the city of Lemon Grove' s General Plan
anticipates the implementation of the mitigation measures identified in this document to reduce

air quality impacts associated with the build out of Lemon Grove but not to a less than
significant level. The cumulative air quality impacts will remain significant and unmitigated. 
However, this project is not considered to result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of
any criteria pollutant. 
Source: ' 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9,' 12, 13

39-. 



Attachment F

4. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 
a) Have a substantial adverse effect either directly or through habitat modifications on any

species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional
plans, policies or regulations, or by the California Department of fish and Game or U. S. 
Fish and Wildlife service? 

b) Have a substantially adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural

community identified in local or regional plan, policies, regulations or by the California

Department of Fish and Game or U. S. Wildlife service? 
C) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by Section

404 of the Clean Water Act ( including but not limited to march vernal pool, coastal, etc.) 

through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means? 

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any resident, migratory wildlife species or

with established native resident migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native

wildlife nursery sites? 
e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a

tree preservation policy or ordinance? 
f} Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural

Conservation Community Plan and other approved local, regional, or state habitat
conservation plan? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

The project is an urban infill residential project consisting of 84 residential units. The site is

currently developed with commercial buildings, a surface parking lot and does not contain
landscape. No wildlife movement corridors will be impacted by this project and mitigation is not
required. 

Source: 1, 21 43 5, 6

5. CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 
a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as

defined in Section 15064. 5? 
b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource

pursuant to Section 15064. 5? 

C) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic
feature? 

d) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

ass Than Significant Impact
X No Impact

Discussion: 

The General Plan and Specific Plan include analyses of prehistoric and historic resources for
the area within the City of Lemon Grove. There are no known historical resources located on
the subject property. The project does not include mass grading and retaining walls are placed
only to adjust the temporary slope recently constructed as a part of the existing cul- de- sac. 

EN



Attachment F

The General Plan and Specific Plan state that the subject property is located in an area
underlain by the Linda Vista formation geologic formation, now mapped as Pleistocene Qvop
deposits. The Linda Vista formation has a very low potential for paleontological resources and
mitigation measures are not required. 

A cultural resources records search and a Sacred Lands File search of the Downtown Village

Specific Plan project area was accomplished in 2005. Mitigation measures are not required as

a result of this search. 

There are no known human remains or those interred outside of formal cemeteries on the

subject property or in the surrounding area. Because the site has been graded as a part of

previous developments, the potential for resources is unlikely. However, in the event any
potential historical or unique archeological resources are discovered during site preparation or
construction activities, all work in the immediate vicinity shall be suspended and alteration of the
materials and their context shall be avoided pending site investigation by a qualified
archaeological or cultural resources consultant retained by the project sponsor. If the discovery
includes human remains, the applicant shall initiate and complete the programs outlined in

CEQA Guidelines 15054. 5. 

Source: 1, 2, 4, 5, 5, 12

6. GEOLOGY AND SOILS. Would the project: 

a) Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of
loss, injury or death involving: ( i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on

the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State

Geologist for the area based on the other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer

to Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication 42. ( ii) Strong seismic ground

shaking? ( iii) Seismic -related ground failure, including liquefaction? ( iv) Landslides? 

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? 

C) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a

result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 

d) Locate on the expansive soil, as defined in Table 18 -I - b of the Uniform Building Code

1997), creating substantial risks to life or property? 
e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative

waste water disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste

water? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project is an urban infill residential project consisting of 84 residential units. The site is

currently developed with commercial buildings and surface parking areas. Minimal soil

excavation ( foundation and utilities) and grading activities ( fill) are proposed as a part of this

project. 

New structures are required to comply with the current seismic requirements of the California
Building Code. Like most urban areas in Southern California, Lemon Grove is subject to

M



Attachment F

earthquakes. The project site is not located in an Earthquake Fault Zone according to the
Alquist- Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act and no active faults or ground ruptures have been
mapped underlying the site or within the City of Lemon Grove. Active regional faults may cause
ground shaking in Lemon Grove. Typical erosion control measures will be required during site
grading. 

A geotechnical study is required to be submitted with an improvement permit application
addressing potential landslide, subsidence, faulting, liquefaction, groundwater or other soil

hazard. Studies in the vicinity have concluded that the area is stable. The study shall propose
construction requirements to ensure that the site is suitable for the proposed project. 

Source: 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 14, 15

7 HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Would the project: 

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine

transport, use or disposal of hazardous materials? 

b} Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably
foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the likely release of hazardous

materials into the environment? 

C) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, 

substances, or waste within one- quarter mile of an existing or proposed school? 
d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous material sites complied

pursuant to Government Code Section 55962. 5 and , as a result would it create a

significant hazard to the public or the environment? 

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan, or where such a plan has not been

adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result

in a safety hazard for people residing or working in the area? 
f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip would the project result in a safety

hazard for people resident or working in the project area? 
g) Impair implementation of, or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response

plan or emergency evacuation plan? 
h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland

fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas, or where residences

are intermixed with wildlands? 

Potentially significant Impact
X Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project is an urban infill residential project consisting of 84 residential units. The site is

currently developed with commercial buildings and surface parking areas. There is no current

use or generation of hazardous materials or wastes on the site. Because of historical uses of

the site, a subsurface assessment and strategy were prepared and generated a program to
monitor on- site environmental conditions was recommended to be implemented and to continue

once site redevelopment activities were complete. Minimal soil excavation ( foundation and

utilities) and grading activities ( fill) are proposed as a part of this project and groundwater

monitoring wells will be installed upon completion of site redevelopment. Recommendations of

the Soil Management Plan and the Site Assessment ( groundwater and soil sampling) will be

implemented as mitigation measures with oversight conducted by the Department of
Environmental Health, 

42- 



Attachment F

The proposed project will not impair implementation of, or physically interfere with, any

emergency response plan or evacuation plan. 

The project is located within an urbanized area and there are no wildlands located within the

vicinity. 

The project is in proximity to a navigation facility and notice must be filed in compliance with the
FAA Part 77 Notice Criteria. 

Source: 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 14, 15, 16, 17

8. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY. Would the project: 

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements? 
b) Substantially degrade groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater

recharge such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the

groundwater table level (( e. g. the production rate of pre- existing nearby wells would drop
to a level which would not support existing land uses or planned uses for which permits

have been granted)? 

C) Substantially alter existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the

alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a manner which would resulting a

substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site? 

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the
alteration of the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate of surface
runoff in a manner which would resulting flooding on- or off-site. 

e) Create or contribute runoff which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned

stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted

runoff? 

fl Otherwise substantially degrade water quality? 
g) Place housing within a 100 -year floodplain on a Federal Flood Hazard Boundary or

Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map? 
h) Place within a 100 -year flood hazard area structures which would impede or redirect

flood flows? 

i) Expose people or structures to significant risk of loss, injury or death involving flooding, 
including flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam? 

j) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow? 

Potentially significant Impact
X Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project is an urban infill residential project consisting of 84 residential units. The site is

currently developed with commercial buildings and surface parking areas. As part of a

subsurface assessment and strategy, a program to monitor on- site environmental conditions, 

including groundwater, was recommended to be implemented and to continue once site

redevelopment activities were complete. Minimal soil excavation ( foundation and utilities) and

grading activities ( fill) are proposed as a part of this project and groundwater monitoring wells
will be installed upon completion of site redevelopment. Recommendations of the Soil

Management Plan and the Site Assessment ( groundwater and soil sampling) will be

implemented as mitigation measures with oversight by the Department of Environmental Health.. 



Attachment F

The project is within the Chollas Hydrologic Sub Area ( HSA) 8. 22 which is within the San Diego
Mesa Hydrologic Area ( HA) 908. 20 within the Pueblo San Diego Hydrologic Unit 908. 00. The

receiving water is Chollas Creek which is listed as impaired. The site is surrounded by paved
streets and there is a storm drain system in Olive Street. 

To address water quality for the project, BMPs will be implemented during construction and
post -construction. Mitigation measures identified in the Water Quality report to be prepared for
this project shall be implemented as recommended and are included as mitigation measures
and conditions of approval. The mitigation measures shall incorporate best management
practices ( BMPs) including site design ( LID), source control and treatment control. The
implementation, construction and on- going maintenance will reduce the impact of the flow of
stormwater or the capacity of the storm drain system to less than significant. 

The project is located outside of the 1 00 -year floodplain and the project has been designed for
thel 00 -year flood event and no such impact is expected to occur. 
Source: 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 10, 12, 14, 15, 17

9. LAND USE PLANNING. Would the project: 

a) Physically divide an established community? 
b) Conflict with an applicable land use plan, policy or regulation of agency with jurisdiction

over the project ( including, but not limited to the general plan, specific plan, local coastal
program, or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating
environmental effect? 

C) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural communities' 

conservation plan? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

The proposed site is located in the Transit Mixed Use 7 and 5 JMUT TMU5) land use

designation of the Downtown Village Specific Plan and is an urban infill development project. 

The existing Culligan Water Softening facility campus is to be demolished. The designs of the

84 -residential dwelling units consist of a mix of 1- 3 bedroom units. The project includes

vehicular parking for the residential units, common open space, bike storage space, a

designated vehicle loading area, and ornamental landscape. The project site is located

approximately 50 -feet from the existing Lemon Grove Depot trolley station. 
The project does not divide an established community nor does the project conflict with any
applicable habitat conservation plan. 

Source: 1, 2, 4, 516

10. MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 
a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the

region and the residents of the state? 

b) Result in the loss of availability of alocally- important mineral resource recovery site

delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? 

Potentially significant Impact

44- 



Attachment F

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

There are no known mineral resources of value located within the city of Lemon Grove, 
Source: 1, 2, 4, a, 6

11. NOISE. Would the project: 

a) Expose persons to or generate noise levels in excess of standards established in the

local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies? 

b) Expose persons to or generate excessive ground borne vibration or ground borne noise
levels? 

C) Result in a substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity

above levels existing without the project? 
d) Result in a substantially temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the

project vicinity above levels existing without the project? 
e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or where such a plan has not been

adopted, within two miles of a public use airport, would the project expose people

residing or working in the area to excessive noise levels? 
fl For a project within vicinity of a private airstrip would the project expose people residing

or working in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

Potentially significant impact
X Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project area is located near SR94 which generates noise levels in certain areas from the

highway that currently require mitigation measures to be implemented in future construction
projects and this project is one of those projects that incorporate noise attenuation devices in
the structure to reduce noise levels to below a level of significance. The project shall also

consider the reasonably foreseeable implementation of the Lemon Grove Realignment Project
and design the project to reduce noise levels produced by the realignment. Mitigation measures

and conditions of approval have been included in the Resolution of Approval requiring that
sound -rated windows, walls and doors within the project be components of the construction

where required consistent with the specifications of the Realignment Noise Assessment. 

Mechanical ventilation and/ or air conditioning shall also be installed in order to provide an
alternate method of supplying fresh air. Written confirmation from an Acoustical Engineer that

the project construction documents are consistent with the requirements shall be submitted prior
to permit issuance. 

The subject property is not located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or public airport

Source: 1, 2, 3, 4, a, 6, 7

12. POPULATION AND HOUSING. Would the project: 

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly ( for example, by
proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly ( for example, through extension of

roads or other infrastructure)? 

EN



Attachment F

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing units, necessitating the construction of
replacement housing units elsewhere? 

C) Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of replacement

housing elsewhere? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project would create an increase of 84 residential condominium units expected to be priced
at market rate. This project promotes the goals and objectives of the housing element and the
Downtown Village Specific Plan. 

The project does not displace existing housing units or people. 
Source: 1, 294, 516, 11, 17

13. PUBLIC SERVICES. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts

associated with the provision of new or physically altered government facilities, need for
new or physically altered government facilities, the construction which could cause

significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, 

response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services: 
a) Fire protection? 

b) Police protection? 

C) Schools? 

d) Parks? 

e) Other public facilities? 

Potentially significant Impact
X Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less, Than Significant Impact
No Impact

Discussion: The Fire Department has reviewed the proposed project and determined that the

Fire Department can provide adequate fire protection services subject to on-going landscape
maintenance requirements. The Sheriff' s Department services are adequate for the proposed
project. The project may increase the number of students in the local school district and may
increase the demand on city parks. The project proposes a rooftop deck and private balconies. 
These proposed facilities do not meet the threshold for park area per standard dwelling unit. 
The difference will be offset by an in -lieu park fee to reduce the potential impact on parks to a
level that is less than significant. 
Source: 1, 2143596, 115 17

14. RECREATION. Would the project: 
a) Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood or regional parks or other

recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would

occur or be accelerated? 

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of
recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment? 

N



Attachment F

Potentially significant Impact
X Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project may increase the demand on city parks. The project proposes a rooftop deck, 
fitness room, and private balconies. These proposed facilities do not meet the threshold for

park area per standard dwelling unit. The difference will be offset by an in -lieu park fee to
reduce the potential impact on parks to a level that is less than significant. 

Source: 1, 21 39 49 59 6, 11, 17

15. TRANSPORTATION/ TRAFFIC. Would the project: 

a) Cause an increase in the traffic which is substantial in relation to the existing traffic load
and capacity of the street system ( i. e., resulting a substantial increase in either the

number of vehicle trips, the volume to capacity ratio on roads, or congestion at

intersections? 

b) Exceed, either individually or cumulatively, a level of service standard established by the
County Congestion Management Agency for designated roads or highways? 

C) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a
change in location that result in substantial safety risks? 

d) Substantially increase hazards to a design feature ( e. g. sharp curves or dangerous

intersection) or incompatible uses ( e. g. farm equipment)? 

e) Result in inadequate emergency access? 
Result in inadequate parking capacity? 

g) Conflict with adopted policies or programs supporting alternative transportation ( e. g. bus

turnouts, bicycle racks)? 

Potentially significant Impact
X Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: The project site is located at 3515 olive Street. The RVSP identifies the planned

width of North Avenue at 78 -feet and olive Street at a planned width of 78 to 80 -feet. The

General Plan Amendment requires that the improvements be installed concurrent with the

construction of the future development proposals. The project shall dedicate real property to
complete the ultimate right- of-way half -width on Olive Street consistent with the neighboring
Citronica II property and compatible with the Realignment Project. The undergrounding of
overhead utilities are delayed pending additional property owners' consent along the City block
frontage and an agreement not to oppose an undergrounding district is required. The project

will provide street trees, curb, gutter and sidewalk improvements along the project' s frontage on
Olive Street and along the cul- de- sac in the middle of the City block. 

The proposed access to the project and parking area will be achieved through the access
contiguous to the north property line of the project site and shared with Citronica II. The Traffic

Analysis prepared for Citronica II project estimated a total of 420ADT including 18 AM peak - 

hour trips and 34 PM peak -hour trips at the project driveways ( including the existing site uses). 
In order to consider reasonably foreseeable projects in the area, the traffic study also included
the build -out of Citronica 2, the Lemon Grove Realignment project and the vacation of Main

Street. 

MIN



Attachment F

The project includes vacation of right- of-way around the existing cul- de- sac that relied on future
redevelopment of private property and real property dedication. The intent of this right- of-way
was to eventually connect with Lemon Avenue at a future four way stop. The recent property
acquisition and use of this private property makes this concept unlikely. The project includes a

request to vacate this segment as a part of the Tentative Map. This proposed vacation

eliminates potential undesirable through - traffic. 

Traffic Studies and Analyses for the Downtown Village Specific Plan, the Lemon Grove Avenue

Realignment, the Main Street Promenade and neighboring projects have identified the build out
of the transit mixed use zone at approximately 400 dwelling units and a total of 820 dwelling
units for the Downtown Village Specific Plan area. Density is assumed to be 150 percent of the
minimum density of a zone and this project will add 84 units ( 420- 504 ADT) to the existing 136
dwelling units on this block. Traffic generation standards for residential densities are

significantly less than traffic generated by commercial activities and the proposed project is well
within the traffic assumed for the complete development of this block. 

Although congestion currently occurs and is expected to continue at certain intersections ( Level

of Service E) within the area, the proposed mitigation measures will reduce the impacts below a

level of significance. The project will be required to provide a proportional share to fund the

intersection improvements at Lemon Avenue and Olive Street (three way stop) and the

signalization at Broadway and Olive Street. This participation is included as mitigation

measures. 

This project will not generate more than 2, 400 daily trips and will not generate more than 200
peak hour trips and therefore does not meet the threshold established by the county congestion
Management Agency. 

The proposed project has been reviewed by the City of Lemon Grove Engineering Department
and the Fire Department and these departments have determined that the design does not

create hazardous design features and that emergency access to the subject property is
adequate as designed and conditioned. The proposed project will not conflict with adopted

policies or programs relating to alternative transportation. 

The project includes a request to deviate from parking requirements regarding quantity, 
dimensions, and design ( tandem). The project is constrained by the existing geometry of the
site and the parking space dimensions are adjusted to create the most efficient and functional
parking area while providing the maximum number of spaces for the residents and guests. The

assignment of tandem parking spaces will be unit based to provide operational feasibility. The

project provides approximately 97 percent of the required parking and offsets include the close
proximity to the Lemon Grove Trolley Depot ( 50 feet), bicycle storage in excess of the

requirements, motorcycle storage, on- site amenities ( rooftop terrace and fitness room). The

location of the project near the transit station encourages transit use and while the reduction of

parking spaces is not significant, limiting parking assets can encourage inhabitants to utilize
mass transit. Mitigation measures are not required for deviations from the parking standards or
requirements. 

Source: 1, 2, 41 55 55 81 93 12, 15

16. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS. Would the project: 

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality
Control Board? 

48- 



Attachment F

b) Require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or

expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant

environmental effects? 

C) Require or result in the construction of new storm drainage facilities or expansion of

existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental

effects? 

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing entitlements

and resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed? 

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment facilities which services or may

serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project' s projected demand in
addition to the provider' s existing commitments? 

f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the project' s

solid waste disposal needs? 

g) Comply with the federal, state, and local statues and regulations related to solid waste? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The existing electrical systems are adequate for the proposed project. Utility easements will be
established and recorded as a part of the project. 

The proposed drainage system has been designed for a 1 09 -year storm event. The project will

be required to comply with a water Quality Technical Report and Storm water Management
Plan. Standard conditions of project approval require submittal of construction BMPs and the

implementation of these BMPs during the construction of the project. The implementation, 

construction and on- going maintenance of the devices identified in the Technical Report are
mitigation measures under the Hydrology and water Quality section and will reduce the impact
of the flow of stormwater or the capacity of the storm drain system to less than significant. 

The City contracts with EDCO Disposal Services to collect the residential, commercial and

municipal solid waste and recyclables. The Integrated waste Management Act on 1989 was

enacted to reduce dependence on solid waste landfills and requires local jurisdictions amount of

waste to be cut. The City of Lemon Grove has developed a program to meet waste reduction
mandates and the applicant shall be required to comply with those requirements. Mitigation is

not required. 

The project will comply with all federal, state and local statues and regulations regarding solid
waste. 

Source: 1, 21 55 5

17. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE. 

a) Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment, 

substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife

population to drop below self- sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal

community, reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or

animal, or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or

prehistory? 

49- 



Attachment F

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The proposed project will not degrade the quality of the environment because it is located in a

developed urban setting and designed to avoid direct and indirect impacts to water quality. 
Standard conditions of approval have been incorporated into the project design to reduce the

potential for the development to degrade the quality of the environment in regards to traffic

circulation and open space. There are no known cultural resources on this site and mitigation

measures have been included in the project approval to address the unexpected discovery of
any resources uncovered during site preparation or construction. 

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively
considerable? ( Cumulatively Considerable" means that the incremental effects of a

project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of the past projects, 

the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

This urban infill redevelopment project as designed and conditioned may result in impacts that

are cumulatively considerable. The City may choose to limit future densities and project types
to encourage a broader mix of uses. The project is located in a redevelopment area that was

characterized by underutilized commercial properties and did not provide the pedestrian activity
that would attract successful commercial and retail redevelopment. With this residential project, 

future residential units may be limited to further commercial uses in the vicinity. 

C) Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects
on human beings, either directly or indirectly? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

The project is an urban infill mixed- use project consisting of commercial space and residential
units and will not cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or
indirectly. 
Source: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 11, 17

In view of the above analysis, it is determined that the project will not have a significant

impact on the environment and an environmental impact report is not required. 



Attachment F

EARLIER ANALYSIS

Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, 

one or more effects have been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration. 

Section 15063 ( c)( 3)( D). 

Earlier Documents prepared and utilized in this analysis are listed below. All of the documents

are available at the City of Lemon Grove, Development Services Department, 3232 Main Street, 

Lemon Grove. 

Reference # Document Title

1 Citv of . General

2 Master Environmental Impact Report for the Lemon Grove General Plan

3 C.....ity of Lemon Grove ....M u .n... i c i p.... a l ..C..ode
r. 

4 Downtown Village Specific Plan prepared by Mooney Jones and Stokes adopted June
2995

5 Downtown Village Specific Plan Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared by Mooney
Jones and Stokes certified June 2005

6
m. 

PDP14- 00021TM001 Application Packe..t.. :,:«:::,::..... 
H uuNuuuNuuuNw::,:::,:::,:,,,,,,,:::........ m ......... w::,:::,::::, rc:mR :::,,.,,,,,._. 

N ? 

Acoustical
r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:ri,:-::,,::::::""" ll"" Ill""Ill",ll"" Ill""I» 1 r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r:r,,:,:,: rY:rY:r rY Y rvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrv rr r:r:r:r: 

Analysis Reports Prepared by Kimley- Horn and Associates Inc. dated

November/ December 2006

8 Traffic Study for City of Lemon Grove Redevelopment Project prepared by Darnell & 
Associates, dated July5, 2005

n:--- --------- ---- . .....  

9 Traffic Impact Analysis prepared by Kimley- Horn and Associates, Inc. dated December, 

2..... ... ... ... ... . . . . .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... . 0.. ...... ...0. .. ..8

10 Firm Insurance Rate Map Community Panel No. 06073C1910G effective date May 15, 
2012

R :..:_: R............... R": m........................... ......... n::::: R. n::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::,  

City of Lemon Grove Housing Element 2005- 2010, dated December 2005

12 General Plan Amendment GPA06- 003 Realignment of Lemon Grove Avenue and

Construction Documents ( 60%). 
rc.....,:, R............................................................................................................................ ..... 

13 Air Quality and Land Use Handbook: A Community Health Perspective prepared by the
California Environmental Protection Agency and California Air Resources Board dated
Aprilril 2 0 0 5

n:: n:. ........................................,.............. » r ................. 

14 Soil Management Plan prepared by SCS Enqineers dated April 13, 2013. 

15 Environmental Site Assessment by SCS Engineers dated July 18, 2014
n< ri ri ri nr»ri,.»r»ri ri ri ri ri ri ri ri ri»,,.,,,.m..... ,,,,,,, „ nn: ,,,:,,,:,,, r,.,:,,,r,.,:,,,r,.,,:,:,: .,,,,,,,,» v»v»v»»„ rrrr»r»r»r»rrrr»r»v»v»v: 

16 FAA Part 77 Notice Criteria Tool

City of Lemon Grove Health & Wellness Element, dated July 15, 2014

Individuals and organizations Consulted

Carol Dick, Development Services Director, City of Lemon Grove
Leon Firsht, City Engineer, City of Lemon Grove
Tamara O' Neal, Associate Engineer, City of Lemon Grove
Chris Jensen, Deputy Fire Marshal, Heartland Fire & Rescue

Robert Gutzler, SCS Engineers

Kurt Culver, President and CEO, Esg it

51- 



Attachment F

52- 

Co

d

J

52- 



Attachment G

EXHIBIT " A" -- PROJECT PLANS

Oversized Plans enclosed in City Council packets and

available for public review at City Hall

53- 



LEMON GROVE ;CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 

Mtg. Date "' J'antila,r .......  201

Dept. Ma n tic °.. 

Item Title: ' San Diego Community Land Trust Business Plan; 

Staff Contact: : Graham Mitchell, City Manager} 

Recommendation: 

Receive report and provide feedback] 

Item Summary: 

In September 2014, the City and San Diego Community Land Trust ( SDCLT) entered into a

Purchase option Agreement for the eventual sale of 8084 Lemon Grove Way. The Purchase

Option Agreement required SDCLT to complete certain milestones by specified dates. The first

milestone submission of a business plan was to be completed by December 2014. The

business plan ensures that SDCLT has done its due diligence to determine whether the project is
feasible. SDCLT submitted the business plan on December 1, 2014. The staff report (Attachment

A) presents an overview of the business plan. Staff recommends that the City Council consider

the business plan and provide feedback. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None.. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section . 

Public Information: 

Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

IE]' Negative Declaration

jQ. Mitigated Negative Declaration

A. Staff Report

B. ISan Diego Community Land Trust Business Plan: 

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

I Neighborhood meeting



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE AGENCY NAME' 
STAFF REPORT

Item No. 13

Mtg. Date January 6, 2016- 

Item 016ItemTitle: : San Diego Community Land Trust Business Plan

Staff Contact: : Graham Mitchell, City Managed

Discussion: 

In September 2014, the City and San Diego community Land Trust ( SDCLT) entered into a

Purchase option Agreement for the eventual sale of 8084 Lemon Grove Way. The Purchase

Option Agreement required SDCLT to complete certain milestones by specified dates. The first

milestone submission of a business plan was to be completed by December 2014. The

business plan ensures that SDCLT has done its due diligence to determine whether the project

is feasible. 

SDCLT submitted the business plan on December 1, 2014. The plan includes the following: 1) 

analysis of the current project entitlements and project design, 2) fiscal feasibility analysis and
pro -forma, and 3) financing plan. This staff report provides a summary of the business plan

submitted by SDCLT. 

Entitlements & Project Design

Based on the review of the entitlement documents ( planned development permit), SDCLT does

not anticipate any modifications. There will be minor modifications to the nine housing unit

interior designs and a revised Standard Urban Stormwater Mitigation Plan ( SUSMP) to reflect

new Stormwater regulations. Staff is satisfied with SDCLT' s entitlement and project analysis. 

Fiscal Analysis & Pro -Forma

SDCLT conducted a fiscal analysis which identified projected revenue from unit sales as well as

the cost to develop the site. SDCLT assumed that: 

the development plan will remain consistent with the approved entitled project, 

qualified families for each income level will be found when the project is complete, 

mortgage rates are stable through the marketing period of the project, 

construction costs remain stable, and

the SUSMP requires no major modification to the project. 

The pro -forma developed by SDCLT indicates the following cost categories

Design/ Engineering/ Permit Fees 70,401

Infrastructure ( onsite & offsite) 245,000

Building Construction 1, 598, 940

Admin/ Financing/ Other 400,682

Developer Fee 1725296

Total Cost 2, 520,000

3- 



Attachment A

SDCLT calculates that the total cost for the project is $ 2, 520, 000. SDCLT also calculates that

the revenue from the sale of the nine units is $ 2, 520, 000 based on the following: 

3 units @ 80% AMI ($ 245, 000) $ 735, 000

3 units @ 90% AMI ($ 280, 000) $ 840, 000

3 units @ 100% AMI ($ 315, 000) $ 945, 000

Total Sales Revenue $ 2, 520, 000

Staff accepts that SDCLT' s assumptions are financially feasible. The determining factor as to
whether the assumptions are realistic will be when SDCLT attempts to secures private

construction financing. 

Financing Plan

SDCLT has identified a three- phase financing plan. The phases include: 1) pre -development

financing, 2) construction loan, and 3) mortgage loans. The pre -development financing will

cover costs such as architecture, engineering and permitting. SDCLT is seeking pre - 

development financing through San Diego Local Initiative Support Corporation ( LISC). An
alternative to LISC financing could be through a City loan. However, because there is no

collateral that could be secured, staff recommends against this option. 

The construction loan would be a conventional construction loan, likely with a lending partner

that SDCLT has relied on in the past. The final financing phase is traditional 30 -year fixed rate
mortgages for each of the units sold to qualified homebuyers. Staff believes that the three - 

phased financing pian is reasonable. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City council receive the report from SDCLT, ask questions and

provide feedback. 



The San Diego Community Land Trust

Milestone 1: Business Plan

Attachment B

5



CD

CD

cn

U) r.
i. (

D

0 CD C: 

0

Ln. (-) 
3 D n cn

0 c
3

3

0

m XrD

OL) 

r) =

3

C: e-+ rD a D
r) e-+ 0

N

L/

I

Ci 0 3 3

s

MMI D

0 3 m 0

90

G) 0

D

D

s

CA

r+ 

7

00

D

r.+ 

N

3 W

FDI 0 3 0

L/

I

Ci 0 3 3

s



m

w

r.

z

t" 

n

c

m

Ln

Ln

C

rD X. 

O

M

Ln

v

ro

rD

C OU

D

ro

Q

3

fi

ro

D 5r+ 

C

a D0

LA D

D un

f-) f+ 

rD

cZ) 

3

3 D

D
V) 

C

D

o

0

Ln

o

0

o

D

D 0

cp

rD C TD

0

o

o

30M

CX

0

ro

rD

v

3

rift

cr

ti



D con con

N



c

oD
x

3

01

O

0

IMEMEMENE rD

3 rD

3

e-+ 
D

oo

l

V) 

QJ

0 1m
CL

D

r+ 

3

04

0

N CD

rD

W

ora

Ln

7oo

o

D

3

rD

RO

E3

V) 

V) 

rD

r+ 

1*

40

r+ 

e -+

O

3

N

O 

N

000"

S

0

rD

0

3

D

D
r-+ 

D

D

0

o

r-+ QJ, 

Cp

N r-+ 

fp

p

O r-+ 

O

O

490 M t"

f

r.+ C CD CD D Q. 0 VI 3 0 r -

F1

e-+ 0 D V7

i

TTV

aj CD s0
D

c

3 

O CL_. r"

F

V'
f

Q c

C) 

0

C: :

3
rD rD

rD

aq p

D

D

0
h

r

r+ 

rD

C

n 0 3 3 c D m m 0 O3 v

m D rF

rD 3 O rn m 3 rm+ D N U; 



to

r"

F

Is

Ln r° 0 u r+ 
I

C: 0 cn

C:: Ln w r+ M7rD D 3 cn Ln r -
F

Z3- C:_

0 33
r+CL) r+ 0 r+ 

r+ r -

F

p 30 w CD w . 

a) 

3 to ra c

D C mrt flu C n 0 Ul r -

f

rD r+ n C: 

C 3

0 I 0 3 c cn CD CD

n0
3

3 rD 0

o NrLnw rD
o

r+ 3 CD

w cr F" o o
o 0

h
a rD a 0 r 

w cr QD Q 0
h

D FD' maq o
w 3 C 00Lno o---

NO3
0(

D

h
a FD• o CD CD

CD r/ n 0 cr 0

3 o' r+ o

rD00

0 3— C e-+ rD

CD 0 o C 3

e

F o

3 K

0• m

e -

F

3

Z3

3

p

0

r -

F

r"

F

Is



Ln -

0

b

C c r

r.+ 

r7

ai

o

n

v

Cr ::

r . 

0

M

n

D

ro

3

a

rD cm

M

r+ EA

Ln

I -

A

Ln

O

w

0

0

o

O

o

0

o

0

v0

2  

f7

G7

O

00

a 

v

3O. Q

j

m

Q

o - - n

LA -% 

0

0

v

N

OC - 

N

r(

D

r+ 

n : 

o

C

rD

N

CL ::

3 

LA C cr r+ 0 rt aj tn• 

IA

w

N

in, 

ih

I3

N

m

Ln

m

FA

iD

iD

W

N

w

0

0

0o

0

o

0

D

K

n

D

n

V

Q

0

Ln

AA

n

rD

rt

Ln N

N V

N 0

o

iI- 
o

S

r* 

c

00

O

D

to

N

O

I- 

m

0

rD

0, 

m

C 40
Ln

0

w0

r+ 

LA

VI Q

R

C

0

rD

r+ 

r+ CA

FD" m

r

c Cr

n '{ 0

0

N40- 

N

v-

0

v

0

Ln

AA

a

a

Ro

rry+ 0

Ln N

N V

N 0

ih

A^ 

w

N

iI- 

ih

ih

V

1-- 

O

N

OG

in

00

w

0

O

N

to

N

O

I- 

m

0

to cn

moi

0

o

40
Ln

o

0

o

cn = 

Q

D

N

D

n

v

0

3

C

C

m

M

r

N

n

m

3

0 CA

r+ 

L4

Ln

cn c Cr r+ v r+ i!} 

ih

ih

4:, 

4:

b

O

u1

u1

O

0

0

0v

c

n

N

v-

0

v

0

a

CA

a

a

Ro

rry+ 0

f rD

N' 

C r -

r

C

n

D . 

r+ 

0

v

r-) 

3

O

rt

r m CA r+ 

1A. 

V)- 

1-- oa

N

N

N

t 

w

O

W

o 

b

D1

W

LI1

w

O

O

V

O % 

Ln

m

00

0

0

N

w

CA

r -
h

in

LI1

N

VI

ro

r

LD

Ic

O

O

A

o  

i

AA

rj

h

r+ 

o

L

3

o

o

x

0

o

O

r

O

a

m

0 a cn

o

m

n

m

aq

C

fD

OD

crInLm
iW -, N V1

l0

00

V

CL

o

c

o `

AA

3

o

O

0

00

0o r rt n v CL X a, 

n

f"] 

f1

Ln

r

F+ 

rn

c  

r) 

3

N

r

O

r+_ 

0

v+ rD 7 CL rD

ih

AA

I/,#- 

4::

b

1

4::

b

i
1 } 

N

I-

3

0 [

11

V1

U1

o

o

o

o

o

00

0

0

IR



Ln
n

o 0o

a

n

0

a

m

3 rD

3

r

a

a LA

pr
q Ln

Cl. 

a

a r-+ 

n p 3

CD

3 C r+ un r+ 

NO

r 

I

K

1

l

V

a Ln r+ a ra(

D

a

1

L
N

C

rt
D

I

0 3

3

3

a n am L, n 6' 

3

r-+ 
O'

Q

rD 3 a G) 

0

aq
r+

rt

a

V)

0) 

p

OL) 

Q

rt

C: 

rD

Onq

n

D

a

OL) 

r

M

V

w

Z7,• 

Qj Ln

D

0

a

n

n

1

rD

i

ED

rna

rD

p

r+ 

Ul

3

a

a

r+ 

3

CL

r' 

oUr) 

C570 0

D

3 CD a

Z rD to r° 

0 a r) a 0

rD CD

5

Ln LA r+ a

3 D

r

a

rD

a

a

r+ 

OL) 

3 m

r+ 

a

rD

o

a

n

V) 

cn

n

c

a

r+ 

rD

r+ C

cr

n

r+ 

C:

r+ 

D

a

3

r+ 

a

r. CD

QJ

rD

C fD to

CD

r+ 

a

0. 

a

CrD

to

m

3

r+ 

a

m

S13

0r-
r

n m

xD

r+ 

a C . 

Cl

Z

r+ 

C: 

n a

D

3

n rt a 

r 

V

a Ln
r+ 

a ra(

D

a a rD 0 3

1 L N

C

rt D

I
0 3

3

3

a n

am
L, 

n 6' 

I na C Ln a

CL
m

m C rD a 3 rD
5

r 

rD 3 a G) 

a

aq
r+

rt

a

1

C

3

CD

a a cr C° 

X 0

rna

rD C

D

r
i• 

rD a

m

rD

0 3 CD a

Z rD to
r° 

0 a r) a 0

rD CD
5

Ln LA
r+ 

a

3

D

na

fD

3 m

o

n

c

r+ 

r 



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 

Mtg. Date u

Dept. it Manaqer' s, Ofte

Item Title: Sidewalk Installation Incentive Programs

Staff Contact: Graham Mitchell, City Manager

Recommendation: 

Provide feedback regarding the establishment of a sidewalk installation incentive program. 

Item Summary: 

During its priority setting workshop in February 2014, the City Council directed staff to prepare an
agenda item that would allow the City Council to discuss potential guidelines for a community
sidewalk program. Staff presents a staff report ( Attachment A) that introduces several sidewalk

incentive program concepts for City Council discussion. Staff recommends that the City Council
consider the ideas presented in the staff report and provide feedback. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Environmental Review: 

N Not subject to review

JE11 Categorical Exemption, Section' 

Public Information: 

I@ None 1E: 1J Newsletter article
Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

1 Negative Declaration

0 Mitigated Negative Declaration

EJJ Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

01 Neighborhood meeting



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 4

Mtg. Date January 6, 2015

Item Title: Sidewalk Installation Incentive Programs

Staff Contact: Graham Mitchell, City Manager

Discussion: 

During its priority setting workshop in February 2014, the city Council directed staff to prepare
an agenda item that would allow the City council to discuss potential guidelines for a community
sidewalk program. Staff introduces several sidewalk incentive program concepts for City
Council discussion. Staff recommends that the City council consider the ideas presented in the
staff report and provide feedback. 

Background

Since the housing boom post World War II, most new housing development that occurred in the
State of California occurred through the development of subdivisions or master planned

neighborhoods. Almost every incorporated city in the State required these types of

neighborhoods to include sidewalks. The sidewalks were constructed as part of the overall

subdivision development and the cost was passed on to the homebuyer. This strategy for

installing sidewalks within new development sites continues today. Through this process, 

ultimately, property owners are the ones that pay for the installation of sidewalks. 

The majority of Lemon Grove's housing development occurred prior to the City's incorporation. 
The County of San Diego managed the growth and development standards for housing
development during this time. Although the County required sidewalk installation in some

housing developments, many Lemon Grove neighborhoods do not have sidewalks. In fact, 

during the preparation of the last General Plan update in 1996, this was an issue of community
debate some community members pushed for sidewalks while others wanted to maintain a

rural feel by not installing sidewalks. 

Several sidewalk projects have shown the positive impact sidewalks can have on a

neighborhood, notably, the sidewalk projects on San Miguel Avenue ( between Massachusetts

Avenue and Main Street) and on Central Avenue ( between Massachusetts Avenue and Main

Street). 

The recent Lemon Grove Health & Wellness Element included a map that illustrated the City' s
sidewalk network ( see page 4 of this staff report). The map shows that there are many east - 
west sidewalk connections in the City ( Broadway, Central Avenue, San Miguel Avenue, portions

of Palm Street, and Canton Drive). However, north - south connects are lacking, except for

Massachusetts Avenue, Lemon Grove Avenue and portions of Skyline Drive/ Kempf Street and

Main Street). The map also shows that although there is effective sidewalk connection within
the City' s commercial corridors, there is a lack of connectivity from neighborhoods to the

commercial areas of the City and between neighborhoods. 

3- 



Attachment A

Nil, IVIIUI' lug"" lull. "' I dl r ul'' VIII III':°"" II! IIIIII: r no1IIlY VIII m VV" 11 p6 t' 11114""°' Itl° mlnIIVIII 11 IIu dlG+ clad " oill " 

U::: i IIUI I III.::,, ulluq to I::::::, 11 N

In City Pailks

nuuu uu uuuuPrDfKAW VW " " m u ulllul" III IIV r:: .: IIIUIuII m :' ll

ili l

For additional background information, staff calculated the cost to install a segment of sidewalk, 
curb and gutter for an average 00 foot wide parcel and verified this figure with several

contractors. Assuming the project requires surveying, engineering, mobilization, traffic control, 

street widening, driveway ramp, and prevailing wage, staff assumes a cost of approximately
6, 000 to $ 9, 000 per parcel. This figure assumes that there are no significant slope issues or

public drainage issues that need to be resolved. 

Incentive Program Concepts

Staff has researched sidewalk incentive programs. This search yielded many examples of

programs that help property owners pay for sidewalk repair to existing sidewalks through city
matching funds. Some programs match as much as 00 percent of the sidewalk repair, with the

property owner paying for 40 percent. 

Staff did not find a matching - type program that incentivized the installation of new sidewalks. 

Some of the major differences between a sidewalk repair incentive program and a sidewalk

installation incentive program include: 

o Lack of public right-of-way, in some instances, 

o Lack of connectivity with other sidewalks, 

o Additional street improvements required as part of project ( storm drainage, slope

stabilization, site preparation, additional street improvements, etc.) 



Attachment A

Given the lack of right-of-way in many areas of the City, staff recommends that any program

require that sufficient right- of-way be dedicated to the City free of charge in order to participate. 
Staff recommends that a program encourage sections of sidewalk be installed, not just one

parcel of sidewalk at a time. There are several ways to encourage the installation of sections. 

First, the City Council could require participation only if entire block sections agree to

participate. Second, the program could offer a more significant match in exchange for greater
levels of private property participation. As an example, a program could be designed that

offered a minimum City match for the installation of sidewalk for one parcel, a greater match

when two to four parcels are developed with sidewalk, and a maximum match for five or more

parcels that develop sidewalks. 

A second way to provide incentives is to provide no- or low-interest rate loans to property

owners to finance sidewalk installation. The loans could be paid over a five- to ten- year period. 

To fund the program, the City could create a revolving loan fund that would operate on a first- 

come -first -serve basis. over time, the loan fund would be replenished as loan payments are

made. A City matching incentive could be added to this type of program to encourage the

installation of larger sections of sidewalk. 

A third possible incentive program is the formation of neighborhood assessment districts. The

assessment district could pay for the sidewalk improvements over a longer period of time ( up to
ten to twenty years). However, the assessment would include financing costs, which add to the

overall cost of the project. A City matching incentive could also be added to this type of

program to encourage the installation of larger sections of sidewalk. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council consider the ideas presented in the staff report and

provide feedback. 

5- 


